.

lm!!

e ——————————————————— e ———————————
e e oL - INcormnorate AU Anlpiali Heporr
A A A AR FAW AR, 6 VA M VA YA 1 L1 LN L A —




Leadership through Technology

Table of Contents

Letter to Stockholders . . . .. ... ... ... ..... 2
Productlnnovation . . ... ... ............ 4
CustomerSupport . . . . .. .. ... ... ....... 6
Manufacturing Excellence . . . . ... ... ....... 8
Communicationimpact . . . . ... .......... 10
PeopleStrength . . . . ... ... ... ........ 12

FinancialStrength . . . . . . ... ... ........ 14

Report on Form 10-K

Form 10-K . . . o e e e e 17
Selected Financial Data . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 24
Front Cover Photos
Upper Left Management's Discussionand Analysis . . . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... 25
ProSpec Track Museum Lighting :
Upper Right Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . e e e 36
iGEN Agili-T Linear Fluorescent
Lower Left Board of Directors and Executive Committee . . . . . .. 83
Computer Numerically
Controlled Spinning Lathe
Lower Right . o ) ) )
Computer-Controlled Genlyte Thomas Group LLC is the largest lighting company in North America dedicated
Moving Lights exclusively to the design, manufacture and marketing of lighting fixtures and controls.

Genlyte Thomas Group LLC serves the commercial, residential, industrial and specialty
markets through the most recognized and respected brand names in the industry.

Genlyte Group Incorporated, 68 percent owner of Genlyte Thomas Group LLC, is proud
to report its eleventh consecutive year of earnings growth. It’s our emphasis on innovation
that will fuel our future growth.
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Leadership Through Technology

Technology can be a critical business builder in many ways - if you
take advantage of it. Genlyte Thomas applies technology to make
its products smarter, to build them more effectively, and to provide
better service and communications throughout the design, sales,
and delivery cycle. Although electric lighting itself dates from the
19th Century, we are moving the state-of-the-art into the 21st. Itis

both exciting and financially rewarding.

Financial Highlights
{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2003

2002 2001

Operating results
Net sales $1,033,899 $ 970,304 $ 985,176
Gross profit margin 35.1% 35.0% 35.4%
Operating profit $ 108252 ; $ 96,418 $ 92,687
Net income $ 46349 i $ 41,120 $ 37,340
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 3.44 $ 3.04 $ 2.80

Diluted $ 3.41 $ 3.01 $ 2.77
Balance sheet data o
Current assets $ 485226 . $§ 424,570 $ 361,725
Total assets $ 773,725 . $ 692,413 $ 637,802
Current liabilities $ 173,829 $ 164,801  $ 158,144
Total debt $ 11474 $ 37,128 $ 40,273
Stockholders’ equity $ 357,368  $ 293,985 $ 262,565
Book value

per average diluted share % 2828 $ 2151 $ 1949
Sales Operating Profit Net Income
Dollars in millions Dollars in millions Dollars in millions

2000 2001 2002 2003 2000 2001 2002

2003

2001 2002

Earnings Per Share
Dollars

| / / i
2000 2001 2002 2003




Leadership through Technology

To our stockholders:

Despite a difficult environment, | am pleased to report that
Genlyte's 2003 performance set new records in total sales,
earnings, and cash generation.

Economic conditions were challenging throughout the year.
Lingering recession and uncertainty created by the lIrag
war continued to depress new commercial and industrial
construction, key markets for us. Moreover, we experienced
some cost increases due to tariffs on imported steel and rising
healthcare premiums, which could only be partially offset by
price increases. And, the weak U.S. dollar had the net effect of
reducing earnings from our divisions in Canada.

Genlyte succeeded in this unfavorable climate by adhering to
its basic principles, which, we believe, make the difference.

These principles begin with an exclusive focus on lighting
fixtures and controls ~ our only business. This focus drives us
to build sales through the market-segment leadership of more
than twenty brands, penetration by differentiated channel
access, product innovation and strategic acquisitions. We
apply consistently tough control of both overhead and product
cost. And, most importantly, we invest in our human resources:
we ask a lot of our people, empower them, and reward their
accomplishments. Advanced technology — in cur products,
marketing, manufacturing, and internal systems - also plays a
crucial role and is highlighted later in this report.

Ultimately, the judges of our success are our customers, who
buy our products, and our stockholders, who expect a fair
return on their investment.

Financial Results

The generally soft construction market notwithstanding,
Genlyte revenues grew 6.6% from $970.3 million in 2002 to a
record $1.034 billion. And for the 11th straight year, earnings
set a record, rising 12.7% to $46.3 million from $41.1 million.
Earnings per share reached a record $3.41, including $0.19
per share gain from successful litigation in the third guarter.
Without the litigation settlement, earnings per share would
have been up 7% from last year, still a record for our company.
Cash from operations of $101.2, up 17%, also set a record.

Genlyte Thomas offset the weakness in its core commercial
markets by efforts in the faster growing institutional segments,
notably education and healthcare, and in the residential
market, which remained strong. Acquisition of Shakespeare
Composite Structures, located in Newberry, South Carolina,
and Largo, Florida, added $19 million to our sales results.
Shakespeare Composite Structures is a manufacturer of
decorative, commercial and utility light poles, transmission and
distribution poles, and other outdoor specialty products.

The operating efficiencies we put in place in 2002, at our
Sparta, Tennessee, fluorescent operations and other facilities,
strengthened margins, as did moderately effective price
increases initiated early in 2003.

All of these positive actions did not go unnoticed by Wall
Street. Additional analysts began covering the developments
of our company, and the increasing price of our stock resulted
in a 86% rise in our market value,




Building for the Future through
Technology

Innovation sets Genlyte Thomas apart in the marketplace.
That's why we continually invest in cutting-edge technology
to provide better and brighter lighting solutions and we fight
s0 hard to protect valuable intellectual property. Our ongoing
goal is to generate at least 30 percent of our revenues from
products introduced within the past three years. In 2003,
we invested $17.6 milion in product development and
production improvements and introduced more than 2,000
new products.

A prime example of technology in new product development
is IGEN, the next generation of intelligent lighting, introduced
by our Lightolier division. iIGEN marries computer-controlled
power supplies with a wide range of fixtures to create a
network of individually and centrally controllable lighting. IGEN
provides lighting users unprecedented options for saving
energy and contouring lighting levels to meet individual needs
and preferences. Another example of new products for 2003
is the VL3000 series from Vari-Lite. This product line integrates
the state of the art computer controls in color mixing, aperture
control, dimming and movement of a high wattage fixture for
dramatic and theatrical use.

For the second straight year, Genlyte Thomas product
leadership was recognized by those closest to the industry.
The more than 113,000 professionals who read Architectural
Lighting and Architecture magazines chose Lightolier and
Gardco as the most preferred lighting companies - based
on product durability, excelience, service, value and design.
Entertainment technology’s Intelligent Raceway and Bak Pak
products won lighting product of the year “EDDY Awards” for
2003 and 2004.

Technology also improves the production of existing products.
QOur Day-Brite facility in Tupelo, Mississippi implemented new
software to synchronize production scheduling, optimize
the supply chain, reduce inventory levels and better serve
our customers. This advance-planning system is an integral
component of World Class Manufacturing.

At Canlyte we launched the vertically integrated ERP system,
enhancing that division's operation and introducing the
web enabled customer interface, e-Canlyte. This provides

responsive service to our customers, makes us more efficient
and positively impacts margins.

In 2002, we acquired Vari-Lite, the leading manufacturer of
computer-controlled lighting for entertainment. This vyear,
we consolidated its Dallas manufacturing operations with
our nearby controls facility — and are reaping the bensfits of
new efficiencies.

Looking Ahead

Although there are indications of economic improverment,
it may take some time to affect the depressed commercial
markets. And, we do not rely upon econcmic improvements
for our future success. To grow market share and margins, we
will continue our focus on building sales internally and through
acquisition, reducing costs, and employing technology to get
business done more efficiently. While we remain cautious
about the economy, we are optimistic about our vitality.

Energy remains a key influence. Although the energy bill stalled
in Congress last year, such legislation — shouid it ultimately
pass and include incentives for the use of energy-efficient
equipment - the results will be good for the country, as well
as for our industry.

In 2004 our Lightolier division will celebrate its centennial. For
a hundred years Lightolier has been a leader in product and
marketing innovation, expanding the many lighting market
segments. Lightolier plans to commemorate its first century
through introductions of the most comprehensive new
collection of products in its history.

| continue to be very proud of what we are accomplishing at
Genlyte and | am enthusiastic about the future. On behalf of all
our employees, | thank you for your support.

Sincerely,

Larry Powers

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Genlyte Thomas is committed to product leadership as a
potent competitive edge in many of our markets. We remain
focused on innovation and technological advances to fuel our
growth. In fact, our objective is to achieve 30% of sales within
any given year from products introduced in the previous three
years. We continue to pioneer new product businesses utilizing
advance technologies such as developing “smart” fixtures. An
example of which is iGEN, the intelligent generation of lighting,
introduced by Lightolier last year. Each IGEN fixture contains
a “smart” electronic ballast, connected by a communications
network to sensors and controls. It responds to commands
addressed specifically to one or any grouping selection.

Ledalite's Ergolight fixtures incorporate a sensor that detects
when an individual workstation is no longer occupied and then
it turns the fixture off. Lightolier's ATOM dimmer attaches to
any track Lytespot fixtures to provide individual control of
the light from a hand-held remote control. Lightolier’s track
Director fixtures tilt and pan to aim wherever you choose.

Entertainment lighting is also moving ahead, powered by the
innovative technology of Vari-Lite's moving lights. Miniaturized,
computer-controlled motors adjust the intensity, direction,
shape and color of the light. They are programmed to respond
automatically as the show cues demand.

Dimmers themselves are changing; led by Genlyte Thomas
superior IGBT technology. IGBT dimmers are more versatile,
quieter and more robust than other technologies. Universal
modules can dim both incandescent and fluorescent sources
and it can withstand short circuits.

Lighting controls bring comfort, convenience and functionality
while conserving energy to residential lighting. Our award-
winning Compaose PLC controls can control all of the lights in
a home using existing wiring to transmit their signals. And they
can be retrofitted without rewiring any fixtures.

Light Emitting Diodes, LED’s, are probably the most talked
about new lighting technology today. Still low in fight output,

they promise long life, energy efficiency, control

over intensity and color, and small size. Ideal for sign

and signal lighting, LED’s are the standard light source for
Chloride exit lights. Their small scale also makes for elegant
step lights, such as those introduced by Hadco.

Lightolier’'s new PowerArc Modular track lights bring new
refinement to the effect and style of retail lighting, by utilizing
miniaturized, energy-efficient metal halide sources with
outstanding color quality. Proprietary optics permit the creation
of small fixtures with very precise beams and washes of light.

Capri, which first introduced the use of lightweight plastic
framesinits downlights, hasincorporated a unigue intumescent
lining In its new line of Firedome downlights. When exposed
to high temperatures, the lining expands to fill the downlight
cavity and provide the fire-rated enclosure required in many
low-rise commercial and multi-family structures.

What distinguishes Genlyte Thomas use of technolegy in new
products is not merely its creative application. Our multiple
brand strategy helps us to understand the different needs of
many lighting users and therefore apply technology in diverse
ways. And our exclusive commitment to lighting and controls
leads us to develop ideas that not only build market share but
increase the value of lighting altogether.
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ustomer Suppo
through
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W are committed to serve our customers better by utilizing
technology. Although lighting business remains very much a
people-to-people business, marketplace success demands
instant access to information, followed through with timely
and appropriate transactions.

Lightolier introduced internal online order processing to the
lighting industry nearly 4G years ago. And Genlyte Thomas
has been using communication technology to foster better
customer service ever since. Today we are integrating the
information flow to provide our distributors with the most
responsive performance. And we are backward integrating
customer-demand information to adjust production planning
to assure that more customers can receive the products they
want, when and where they want them,

A number of Genlyte Thomas brands such as Lightolier have
taken the lead by extending to our distribution network on-
demand, online access for rapid order entry and expediting.
Through Lightolier Express, at any time of day, customers can
search inventory, identify appropriate products, place orders
directly, follow shipping, and access open order information.
Customer-direct, online order processing not only speeds
up the logistical process, it lowers transaction costs — a key
concern both to Genlyte Thomas and its customers.

Customer-responsive support begins by designing products
that can be manufactured and assembled flexibly, allowing us
to build the final item in just the right configuration and quantity,

on a just-in-time basis. This reduces finished goods inventory
cost and shortens the ultimate product delivery cycle.

Another example is Day-Brite's new lightENTRY system.
Combining external and internal information on a continuous
basis, it optimizes order input to give the manufacturing
facilities customer-responsive requirements and to provide
the economies of long-run operations to a wide range of
order size, large and small. With the steady contraction in
construction lead times, responsive delivery has never been
more impaortant.
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Vanutacturing
Excellence

through

lechnology

Product innovation through Technology cannot be realized
without the full integration of technology in manufacturing.
incorporating technology in all our processes s, therefore, our
drive for manufacturing excellence throughout the company.
From the introduction of hydroform presses in the 19€0s, to
progressive-die production of aluminum louvers in the 1980s,
to effective use of computer controlled flexible manufacturing
in the 1990s, to application of high performance coemposite
materials in a variety of products, Genlyte Thomas has
steadily improved both the cost effectiveness and quality of
its products.

Toeday, computer controlled spinning, buffing, and ancdizing
equipment enables Lightolier's Fall River,  Massachusetts
operation - the world’s largest integrated downlighting facility
— to economically produce industry-leading downlights with
consistently high performance and quality. Sophisticated
forming technigues and laser cutting tools make possible
the superior optical and mechanical performance of products
produced at this facility. Advanced environmental control
in  manufacturing processes eliminates  environmental
contamination, earning this facility recognition as a good
corporate citizen by the EPA,

In our mainstream fluorescent operations in Fontana,
California, Sparta, Tennessee and Wilmington, Massachusetts
investment in high-speed, computer-controlled manufacturing
processes have substantially reduced material handling and
set up time. Integrated, continuous manufacturing with quick-
change press dies supports the centralized production of
various Genlyte Thomas brands. This translates into lower
costs in a highly competitive business.

Where fluorescent product variation and finish quality is critical
to market success — for example, in the indirect systems
increasingly used in offices and schools - electronically
controlled eguipment supports a broad product line with

" g

C
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quality and cost effectiveness. Programmable forming and
punching tools and robotic welding are primary production
techniques at Ledalite and Canlyte.

Particularly in outdoor lighting, we are applying heat and
corrosion-resistant composite materials to replace metal
and enhance product performance. Fixtures designed for
in-ground mounting by Hadco and Bronzelite are carving
out attractive niches. Indoors, Agili-T from Canlyte uses
molded composites to reduce fixture weight and make it
easy to relocate suspended fixtures, an important feature for
corporations seeking a flexible office layout.

To accelerate the product development process, we build
computer models to evaluate photometric and thermal
performance. While the initial concept stems from the
experience and creativity of the design and engineering team,
computerized development quickly validates the concept
and permits refinement - without waiting for costly and
time consuming prototypes. For example, at Burgaw, North
Carolina, where we produce life safety lighting, we use stereo
lithography computerized model-making extensively to move
directly from the electronic design files o three-dimensional
models used for engineering and to validate styling.
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Communication

[mpact
throwugh

lechnology

Nearly ten years ago, Genlyte introduced GENESYS, one of
the industry’s first computer-based design tools to integrate
lighting design and job management. Today, professionals and
customers can go online to consult our application guides
for a variety of our brands - such as the recently published
Designing With Light for Education at Lightolier website. They
can search our Comprehensive Product Selector by fixture
type or attribute and download technical specifications and
installation manuals. And, they can customize the presentation
of information for use in their own specifications.

Using these online tools, our product offerings are
continuously updated with new items and technical revisions,
delivering a level of timeliness, completeness and reliability
unapproachable just a few years ago. All of which reduces the
time required — and the risk of errors.

Lightolier’s new Sales Force Automation system gives its far-
flung sales teams early warning of new projects, facilitates
contact management across the country, and speeds the
development of a compstitive bill of material. With project and
product information both traveling at electronic speeds our
salespeople — who are the key to closing the job — are better
prepared than ever before.

o

Vari-Lite's new electronic newsletter goes directly to specifying
professionals. It alerts them to new products, technical
enhancements and effective application. Cutting through the
mass of traditional communication with information from a
recognized and trusted source, this new medium keeps pace
with the fast-changing world of entertainment lighting.

For off-line use we still provide outstanding catalogs and
application guides, both in printed and electronic formats.

Internally, we also utilize state-of-the-art technology to
communicate faster, better and on time with all aspects
of our operation. All of our facilities are networked, and
intranet websites provide the latest company information and
priorities to each and every one of our divisions and facilities.
An example of this effort is the Genlyte Thomas corporate
electronic employee information and action board — “LiteSite.”
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Emp@W@rm@mﬁ

At Genlyte Thomas people make the difference - a difference
that is visible in the company’s ongoing financial performance
and our commitment to leadership in all aspects of our
activities. We are determined to maintain an environment
that provides the opportunity for personal growth for all of our
teammates who aspire to succeed. We believe in promotion
from within, in fact, thirteen of our sixteen current Division
General Managers have spent their formative years at Genlyte
Thomas in a culture of performance and strict accountability.

Genlyte Thomas is also a sales driven company and we field
over 1,000 sales and service personnel around the country.
Some are our direct employees; others are independent sales
representatives. All benefit from continuous training for both
the new and well-established products that we market. To
achieve our training objectives and integrate the process into
the rest of our business activities, Genlyte Thomas increasingly
looks to new tools and techniques for distance learning.

Lightolier's web-delivered Lighting Lessons Online is a good
example. Lighting Lessons Orline provides a technical
foundation for salespeople, distributors, design prefessionals

and contractors. Each of the 27 units includes technical.

information, graphics and self-assessment questions, and
qualifies for continuing education credits from the lighting and
design industries.

Lightolier reguires that every sales persen complete Lighting
Lessons Online as part of their initial training. The program
is a prerequisite for attending the more advanced, hands-on
education at Lightolier's TechCenter (for distributors as well

as company personnel). In the onsite training, the common
information acquired over the web simplifies the task of
addressing participants with differing backgrounds.

Through online registration and assessment completion,
Lightolier tracks participation through the entire program,
which has been used by over 8,000 participants since its
inception in 2001. Lightolier continues to add modules
to Lighting Lessons Online, moving from basic training to
intermediate issues of lighting application.

All Genlyte Thomas brands conduct training programs tailored
1o their specific markets.
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Mnancial Strength

trrough
Perrormance

Continuous positive financial performance is one measure of
our success. Genlyte has been able to post quarterly growth
for 35 of the last 36 consecutive quarters. 2003 represented
our 11th consecutive year of earnings per share growth
for the company. Genlyte Thomas divisional structure and
entrepreneurial approach assigns responsibility to the front
iine. Managers who are close to the business can respond
nimbly to market opportunities, driving their brands into
chosen market segments, innovating, and improving their
operations continuously. They and their teams push toward
clear financial goals — and we reward that achievement. Since
long before the passage of Sarbanes-Oxley, Genlyte has been
committed to impeccable ethical standards of corporate
and individual responsibility in financial reporting and overall
pusiness conduct.

We also employ strong financial controls, which provide
Genlyte Thomas leadership and line managers alike with

prompt feedback and performance guidelines. Additionally,
attention to cash generation, among other measures, has
given the company a robust cash and short-term investment
position of $152.6 million at ysar end.

While we cannot predict the Company’s future financial results,
we have confidence in Genlyte’s culture of performance and
our ahility to make a difference in our business.
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Genlyte Thomas markets its products through

T& i a portfolio of 23 brands, each recognized for
leadership in its respective market. We believe

o in the power of brand leadership and our brands

are focused on lighting and lighting controls for

@ad@ﬂos ﬂ residential, commercial, Industrial, outdoor and

theatrical lighting. In Canada our dominate market

share is supported through two umbrella brands:

Zfb?@% h Canlyte and Thomas Lighting Canada. Genlyte

Thomas brands represent much more than a
@ S respected brand name. Each brand embodies a
distinctive competency through focused products

and marketing expertise.
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PARTI1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The Genlyte Group Incorporated (“Genlyte™) was incorporated in the State of Delaware in 1985 as a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Bairnco Corporation. In 1988 Genlyte was spun off from Bairnco Corporation and became an independent public company.

On August 30, 1998, Genlyte and Thomas Industries Inc. (“Thomas”) completed the combination of the business of Genlyte
with the lighting business of Thomas (“Thomas Lighting”), in the form of a limited liability company named Genlyte Thomas
Group LLC (“GTG”). Genlyte contributed substantially all of its assets and liabilities to GTG and received a 68% interest in
GTG. Thomas contributed substantially all of the assets and certain related liabilities of Thomas Lighting and received a 32%
mnterest in GTG. For more information regarding the formation of GTG, see note (3) in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Throughout this report on Form 10-K, the term “Company” as used herein refers to The Genlyte Group Incorporated, including
the consolidation of Genlyte, GTGQ, and all majority-owned subsidiaries.

The Company designs, manufactures, markets, and sells lighting fixtures, controls, and related products for a wide variety of
applications in the commercial, residential, and industrial markets in North America. The Company operates in these three
industry segments through the following divisions: Capri/Omega, Chloride Systems, Controls, Crescent, Day-Brite, Gardco,
Hadco, Lightolier, Shakespeare Composite Structures, Stonco, Thomas Residential, and Wide-Lite in the United States, and
Canlyte, Ledalite, Lumec, and Thomas Lighting Canada in Canada. The Company markets its products under the following
brand names:

In the U.S. -- Bronzelite, Capri/Omega, Chloride Systems, Crescent, Day-Brite, Entertainment Technology,
ExceLine, Forecast, Gardco, Hadco, Ledalite, Lightolier, Lightolier Controls, Lumec, Lumec-
Schreder, Shakespeare Composite Structures, Stonco, Thomas Lighting, Translite Sonoma, Vari-
Lite, and Wide-Lite.

In Canada -- All of the above plus Canlyte and Thomas Lighting Canada.

The Company’s products primarily utilize incandescent, fluorescent, light emitting diodes (LED), and high-intensity discharge
(HID) light sources and are marketed primarily to distributors who resell the products for use in new commercial, residential,
and industrial construction as well as in remodeling existing structures.

Because the Company does not principally sell directly to the end-user of its products, management cannot determine precisely
the percentage of its revenues derived from the sale of products installed in each type of building or the percentage of its
products sold for new construction versus remodeling. The Company’s sales, like those of the lighting fixture industry in
general, depend significantly on the level of activity in new construction and remodeling.

Part of the Company’s strategy has been to strengthen its product lines and profitably grow sales through the acquisition of
other lighting companies. A description of recent acquisitions is contained in notes (5), (6), and (7) in the “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Financial Information About Industry Segments
Financial information about the Company’s industry segments for the last three fiscal years is set forth in note (20) in the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Products and Distribution
The Company designs, manufactures, markets, and sells the following types of products:

Indoor Fixtures: Incandescent, fluorescent, LED, and HID lighting fixtures and lighting controls for commercial,
residential, industrial, institutional, medical, entertainment, hospitality, and sports markets, and task
lighting for all markets.

Outdoor Fixtures: HID and incandescent lighting fixtures and accessories for commercial, residential, industrial,
institutional, and sports markets.

The Company’s products are marketed by independent sales representatives and Company direct sales personnel who sell to
distributors, electrical wholesalers, mass merchandisers, and national accounts. In addition, the Company’s products are
promoted through architects, engineers, contractors, and building owners. The products are sold principally throughout the
United States, Canada, and Mexico.

19



Raw Materials Sources and Availability

The Company purchases large quantities of raw materials and components -- mainly steel, aluminum, ballasts, sockets, wire,
plastic, lenses, glass, and corrugated cartons -- from multiple sources. No significant supply problems have been encountered
in recent years. Relationships with vendors have been satisfactory.

Patents and Trademarks

The Company has hundreds of United States and foreign mechanical patents, design patents, and registered trademarks. The
Company maintains such protections by periodic renewal of trademarks and payments of maintenance fees for issued patents.
The Company vigorously enforces its intellectual property rights. The Company does not believe that a loss or expiration of
any presently held patent or trademark is likely to have a material adverse impact on its business.

Seasonal Effects on Business
There are no predictable significant seasonal effects on the Company’s results of operations.

Working Capital

The Company has no significant business practices counter to lighting industry practices that affect working capital. The
Company’s terms of collection vary but are generally consistent with lighting industry practices, including programs to extend
terms beyond 30 days. The Company attempts to keep inventory levels at the minimum required to satisfy customer
requirements. The residential segment, as well as the commodity-type products in the commercial and industrial segments,
generally requires substantial amounts of finished goods to satisfy quick shipment of customer orders. Other products that are
made to order require less finished goods but more raw material and component inventories.

Backlog
Backlog was $87,304,000 as of December 31, 2003; $88,451,000 as of December 31, 2002; and $94,989,000 as of December
31, 2001. Substantially all the backlog at December 31, 2003 is expected to be shipped in 2004.

Competition

The lighting market addressed by the Company represents an estimated $7.4 billion of revenues per year. The industry is very
mature, and although it contains a few large companies, no single company is truly dominant. The Company believes its sales
make it the third highest-selling lighting fixture manufacturer in North America, behind the lighting equipment segment of
Acuity Brands, Inc. (better known as Lithonia) and Cooper Industries, whose lighting fixture sales are included in its electrical
products segment. However, the lighting industry is highly fragmented, with markets served by many international, national,
and regional companies.

The Company’s products span major market segments in the lighting industry and therefore compete in a number of different
markets with numerous competitors for each type of fixture. The principal measures of competition in indoor and outdoor
fixtures for the commercial, residential, and industrial segments are price, service (delivery), design, innovation, and product
quality and performance. Certain commodity-type products compete more on price, delivery, and quality. More differentiated
products compete more on design, innovation, and product performance, including energy efficiency. The Company believes
that it competes adequately in all of these measures of competition and attempts to differentiate itself through innovation and
energy efficiency.

Research and Development .

The Company continues to develop new products to provide innovative lighting solutions to meet the needs of its customers.
Costs incurred for research and development activities, as determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, were $10,343,000; $8,521,000; and $9,359,000 during 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Environmental Regulations

The Company’s operations are subject to Federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations that have been enacted to
regulate the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the environment.
Management does not anticipate that compliance with current environmental laws and regulations will materially affect the
Company’s capital expenditures, results of operations, or competitive position in 2004,

Employees

At December 31, 2003, the Company employed 3,255 union and nonunion production workers and 1,946 engineering,
administrative, and sales personnel, for a total of 5,201 employees. Several of the collective bargaining agreements, covering
723 employees, which is 29% of the union employees and 14% of the total employees, will expire in 2004. Relationships with
unions have been satisfactory. Expiration and re-negotiation of collective bargaining agreements is not expected to have a
significant impact on 2004 production.
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International Operations

The Company has international operations in Canada and Mexico. Financial information about the Company’s operations by
geographical area for the last three fiscal years is set forth in note (21) in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” Management generally believes that there are no substantial
differences in business risks with these international operations compared with domestic operations, except that the Company is
subject to different economic uncertainties in its foreign operations and is subject to foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements. Certain
information in Items 1, 2, 3, 5, 7 and 8 of this report on Form 10-K includes information that is forward-looking. The matters
referred to in such information could be affected by the risks and uncertainties involved in the Company’s business. These
risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the effect of overall economic and specific market conditions, new
building construction cycles, the impact of seasonal weather conditions on construction activity, customer acceptance of price
increases, acceptance of new product offerings, availability of attractive acquisition candidates, cost and availability of steel
and other raw materials, casualty and medical insurance cost increases, the costs and outcomes of legal proceedings, currency
exchange rates, the level and volatility of interest rates, the impact of legislative enactments, regulatory action and changes in
accounting standards and taxation requirements, environmental laws in domestic and foreign jurisdictions, as well as certain
other risks described in this report on Form 10-K.

Available Information

The Company makes available free of charge through its Internet web site its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to those reports, and proxy statements for its annual meeting of
stockholders as soon as reasonably practicable after this material has been electronically filed with, or furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission. This material may be accessed by visiting the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s web site at http://www.Genlyte.com.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In August 2002, the Company moved its Corporate office to a new leased office building in Louisville, Kentucky. Because of
the large number of individual locations and the diverse nature of the operating facilities, specific description of each property
owned and leased by the Company is neither practical nor meaningful to an understanding of the Company’s business. All of
the buildings are of steel, masonry, or concrete construction, are maintained and generally in good working condition, and
generally provide adequate and suitable space for the operations of each location. A summary of the Company’s property
follows:

26 Owned Facilities 50 Leased Facilities 76 Combined Facilities
Nature of Facilities Total Square Feet Total Square Feet Total Square Feet
Manufacturing Plants 1,931,050 450,100 2,381,150
Warehouses 1,060,248 343,300 1,403,548
Administrative Offices 332,953 157,440 490,393
Sales Offices 84,500 97,597 182,097
Other 141,417 60,100 201,517
Total 3,550,168 1,108,537 4,658,705

While management believes that the Company’s facilities are generally adequate, the Company is currently, and will continue,
reorganizing manufacturing and distribution facilities in order to more efficiently utilize capacity. The Company has additional
capacity available at some of its manufacturing facilities, and consolidating activities have and will continue to occur. At the
same time, management currently has plans to expand manufacturing capacity at one location. The overall strategy is to focus
each facility on what it does best.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 29, 2003, GTG settled a patent infringement lawsuit filed in March 2000 against Acuity Brands, Inc. and its Lithonia
Lighting Division. The United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky in Louisville had ruled in January 2003
that Lithonia’s plastic Insta-Lite product infringes GTG’s Quicklight plastic recessed lighting fixture patent. Lithonia paid GTG $8
million and also agreed to cease selling the infringing version of its plastic recessed lighting product as of December 31, 2003.

Genlyte was named as one of a number of corporate and individual defendants in an adversary proceeding filed on June 8, 1995,
arising out of the Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing of Keene Corporation (“Keene”). The complaint is being prosecuted by the
Creditors Trust created for the benefit of Keene’s creditors (the “Trust”), seeking from the defendants, collectively, damages in
excess of $700 million, rescission of certain asset sale and stock transactions, and other relief. With respect to Genlyte, the
complaint principally maintains that certain lighting assets of Keene were sold to a predecessor of Genlyte in 1984 at less than fair
value, while both Keene and Genlyte were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Bairnco Corporation (“Bairnco”). The complaint also
challenges Bairnco’s spin-off of Genlyte in August 1988. Other allegations are that Genlyte, as well as other corporate defendants,
are liable as corporate successors to Keene. The complaint fails to specify the amount of damages sought against Genlyte. The
complaint also alleges a violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (*“RICO”).

Following confirmation of the Keene reorganization plan, the parties moved to withdraw the case from bankruptcy court to the
Southern District of New York Federal District Court. On January 5 and 6, 1999, the Court rendered rulings restricting the claims
by the Trust against Genlyte and other corporate defendants and dismissing the claims against all remaining individual defendants
except one. The primary effect of the rulings with respect to claims against Genlyte was to require the Trust to prove that the 1984
sale of certain lighting assets of Keene was made with actual intent to defraud present and future creditors of Genlyte’s predecessor.

On March 17, 2003, the Court entered a summary judgment in favor of all defendants in the case. As a result, the case against all
defendants, including Genlyte, was dismissed in its entirety. On April 14, 2003, the Trust filed a Notice of Appeal to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit from the final judgment entered on March 17, 2003. The Notice claims to bring up
for review all orders, opinions, and decisions previously entered in the action; however, the Trust has since indicated that it would
pursue its appeal only as to certain issues including the dismissal of the fraudulent conveyance claims, but would not pursue its
appeal as to certain other issues, including the dismissal of the RICO claims. Argument on appeal is scheduled for March 24, 2004.

In the normal course of business, the Company is a plaintiff in various lawsuits and is also subject to various legal claims which
arise in the normal course of business, including being a defendant and/or being a potentially responsible party in, generally,
patent, trademark, product liability, environmental and contract claims and litigation. Based on information currently available,
it is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of pending and threatened claims against the Company will not
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

The Company records liabilities and establishes reserves for legal claims against it when the costs or exposures associated with
the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. Because the ultimate outcome of legal claims and litigation is
uncertain, the actual costs of resolving legal claims and litigation may be substantially higher than the amounts reserved for
such claims. In the event of unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of such matters, if
unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on results of operations of the Company in future periods.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of the stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2003.
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PART II
ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Genlyte’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market System under the symbol “GLYT.” Data
regarding market prices of Genlyte’s common stock are included in note (22) in the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” section Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(b) The number of common equity security holders is as follows:
Number of Holders
of Record as of
Title of Class Year-end 2003
Common Stock,
par value $.01 per share 11,812

©) The Company has never paid a cash dividend on its common stock and does not expect to pay any cash dividends on
its common stock in the foreseeable future. This is not because of dividend restrictions, but because management
believes the stockholders are better served if all of the Company’s earnings are retained for expansion of the business
or used to repurchase treasury shares. Information concerning Preferred Stock Purchase Rights is included in note
(17) in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.”

(d) The following table gives information as of December 31, 2003 about equity awards under the Company’s stock
option plans.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

Number of Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding those
QOutstanding Options,  Outstanding Optiouns, Currently
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Outstanding)
Equity compensation plans approved by
the security holders 814,680 $ 27.83 1,986,000
Equity compensation plans not approved
by the security holders N/A N/A N/A
Total 814,680 $ 27.83 1,986,000

The Company’s only equity compensation plans are its 1998 and 2003 stock option plans, both of which were approved by the
security holders.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Item 8§ “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data.)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Summary of Operations
Net sales $ 1,033,899 970,304 985,176 1,007,706 978,302
Gross profit $ 362,577 339,871 348,594 356,402 332,730
Operating profit $ 108,252 96,418 92,687 92,620 86,861
Interest (income) expense, net $ (324) 213 3,347 3,922 4,584
Minority interest $ 32,594 29,245 27,105 26,592 25,268
Income before income taxes $ 75,982 66,960 62,235 62,106 57,009
Income tax provision $ 29,633 25,840 24,895 25,802 24,228
Net income ) 46,349 41,120 37,340 36,304 32,781
Return on:

Net sales 4.5% 4.2% 3.8% 3.6% 3.4%

Average stockholders’ equity 14.2% 14.8% 15.2% 16.9% 17.8%

Average capital employed 13.2% 13.0% 12.5% 13.1% 13.5%
Year-End Position
Working capital 3 311,397 259,769 203,581 172,174 175,702
Net property, plant and equipment $ 111,624 107,576 110,447 113,001 104,989
Total assets $ 773,725 692,413 637,802 635,491 575,710
Capital employed:

Total debt $ 11,474 37,128 40,273 69,313 55,611

Stockholders’ equity $ 357,368 293,985 262,565 227,165 202,542

Total capital employed $ 368,842 331,113 302,838 296,478 258,153
Per Share Data
Net income:

Basic $ 3.44 3.04 2.80 2.68 2.37

Diluted $ 341 3.01 2.77 2.65 2.37
Stockholders’ equity per average

diluted share outstanding § 26.28 21.51 19.49 16.61 14.63
Market range:

High $ 60.55 45.00 34.93 28.00 26.00

Low $ 26.95 28.62 23.38 18.13 16.00
Other Data
Orders on hand $ 87,304 88,451 94,989 95,887 102,080
Depreciation and amortization $ 24,207 23,169 28,172 25,664 23,835
Capital expenditures $ 17,559 18,912 20,250 28,423 20,514
Average shares outstanding(*) 13,597 13,668 13,475 13,675 13,849
Current ratio 2.8 2.6 2.3 2.0 2.0
Interest coverage ratio 83.3 46.4 17.2 13.7 12.6
Debt to total capital employed 3.1% 11.2% 13.3% 23.4% 21.5%
Average number of employees 5,119 5,018 5,331 5,475 5,343
Average sales per employee $ 202 193 185 184 183

(*) in thousands, including incremental common shares issuable under stock option plans
In 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

See note (2) in the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” section of Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data,” for information related to the impact of this accounting change on the Company’s net income and earnings per share.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”
Overview

The Genlyte Group Incorporated holds a 68% interest in Genlyte Thomas Group LLC. Thomas Industries Inc. holds the
remaining 32% interest. The Company is one of the top three largest manufacturers of lighting fixtures in North America, and
the largest company in North America devoted exclusively to selling lighting fixtures, controls, and related products. The
Company has a 13.9% share of the North American lighting market, which it estimated to be $7.4 billion in 2003. The total
market is divided as follows: 33% commercial, 32% residential, 27% outdoor, and 8% industrial. The Company participates
primarily in the commercial and outdoor markets, but also has a considerable position in the residential and industrial markets.

The Company sells products under 23 widely recognized and respected brand names. Part of its strategy is to take advantage of
brand name recognition and focus its brands on specific markets, market channels or product competencies. The Company sells
primarily through wholesale electrical distributors — mostly independent distributors and selective relationships with national
accounts — using multipte sales forces of direct sales employees and independent sales representatives to maximize market
coverage.

The Company is committed to product innovation. Its goal is to generate 30% of its annual sales from new products released
within the past three years. In 2003, it released over 2,000 new products. It has 515 patents/patents pending. The Company is
also committed to growth through market share penetration and strategic acquisitions. Since the formation of GTG in 1998, the
Company has acquired six companies that contributed over $125 million to 2003 sales.

In spite of soft commercial and industrial construction markets during 2003, the Company’s net sales, net income, and cash
flow from operations all grew by more than 10% compared to 2002. Weakness experienced in its core commercial markets
was offset by refocusing efforts on the faster growing institutional markets of education and healthcare and in the residential
market, which remained strong. The acquisition of Vari-Lite in November 2002 and Shakespeare Composite Structures
(“Shakespeare”) in May 2003 added approximately $50 million to 2003 net sales. Tight control of selling, administrative and
product costs helped earnings.

Although the overall economy in North America is improving, commercial and industrial new construction is not expected to
improve until at least the second half of 2004, and demand for lighting fixtures may not pick up until at least late 2004 or early
2005. In response to the persistent weak market conditions, management is continuing with the following plans: ongoing
industry leadership in product development and new product introductions; refocusing the sales force on the more robust
markets of schools, museums, and healthcare; searching for strategic acquisitions; and continuing cost control.  If the energy
bill, which stalled in Congress in late 2003, ultimately passes with incentives for energy-efficient lighting products, it may
provide significant business opportunities for the lighting industry and the Company.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net sales for 2003 were $1,033.9 million, increasing by $63.6 million, or 6.6% from 2002 net sales of $970.3 million. The
2003 net sales included incremental sales of $48.6 million relating to Vari-Lite, acquired in November 2002, and Shakespeare,
acquired in May 2003. Net sales for comparable operations, excluding these acquisitions, increased 1.5%. The commercial
and industrial construction markets in which the Company operates remained soft throughout the entire year. Overall
commercial new construction in the U.S. decreased 6.0% from 2002, which was also a weak year. One of the Company’s
largest markets, retail construction, was down significantly; hospitality construction decreased in 2003, but not as much as in
2002; and new office construction was very weak because of the glut of office space in many major cities. The industrial
construction markets were flat compared to 2002. The residential market, however, was relatively strong. The Company has
received a small benefit from its price increase announced in the first quarter of 2003. Because of the continued soft conditions
in the construction markets, and the excess capacity in the lighting industry, pricing remains very competitive.

Net sales for the U.S. operations increased 5.5% compared to 2002, while net sales for the Canadian operations increased

12.1%. Without Vari-Lite and Shakespeare, net sales for the U.S. operations would have decreased 0.5%. The increase in net
sales for Canadian operations is entirely attributable to the change in exchange rates. The strengthening of the Canadian dollar
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versus the U.S. dollar in 2003 compared to 2002 increased U.S. dollar sales of Canadian operations by $19.1 million. If the
exchange rate had remained constant, net sales of Canadian operations would have decreased 0.2%.

The Company operates primarily in the commercial lighting markets, with 74.8% of its 2003 net sales coming from the
Commercial segment. This percentage is up from 73.2% in 2002. Net sales of $772.9 million for the Commercial segment in
2003 increased 8.8% from 2002 net sales of $710.2 million. Vari-Lite and Shakespeare are both in the Commercial segment.
2003 net sales for comparable operations, excluding these acquisitions, increased 2.0%. I[f the Canadian exchange rate had
remained constant, and Commercial segment net sales had received no benefit from currency translation, net sales would have
increased 6.6%. Excluding both acquisitions and currency translation, net sales would have decreased 0.3%.

Residential segment net sales of $129.5 million in 2003 represented 12.5% of total Company net sales compared to $132.4
million in 2002, or 13.6% of total Company net sales. Although the residential construction market has remained one of the
stronger areas of the U.S. economy, net sales in the Residential segment declined 2.2% from 2002. If the Canadian exchange
rate had remained constant, and Residential segment net sales had received no benefit from currency translation, net sales
would have decreased 2.8%. The segment’s strategy has been to reduce emphasis in the do-it-yourself business and
concentrate on higher margin business. The strategy has improved the segment’s overall profitability, as operating profit as a
percentage of net sales was 13.9% in 2003, compared to 12.0% in 2002.

The Industrial and Other segment accounts for all remaining net sales and declined as a percentage of total Company net sales:
12.7% in 2003 versus 13.2% in 2002. Net sales of $131.5 million for the Industrial and Other segment in 2003 increased 2.9%
from 2002 net sales of $127.7 million. If the Canadian exchange rate had remained constant, and Industrial and Other segment
net sales had received no benefit from currency translation, net sales would have increased 1.1%

Net income for 2003 was $46.3 million ($3.41 per diluted share), a 12.7% increase over 2002 net income of $41.1 million
($3.01 per diluted share). The 2003 net income includes $773 thousand of incremental net income related to Vari-Lite and
Shakespeare. Net income during 2003 was impacted by the following significant items:

The Company collected $8.0 million from a patent litigation settlement with the Lithonia division of Acuity Brands, Inc. in the
third quarter. The settlement increased operating profit by $6.4 million, net of $1.6 million of legal expenses, and increased net
income by $2.6 million ($0.19 per diluted share) after minority interest and income taxes. However, even without the litigation
settlement, the Company increased its net income and earnings per share by 6.3% and 7.0%, respectively, over 2002.

The Company’s total legal expenses increased $1.0 million compared to 2002, for a negative impact on net income of $400
thousand after minority interest and taxes. In addition, the Company wrote down the carrying value of its Controls division
building which was vacated, and wrote off design costs related to the manufacturing plant that had been planned for San
Marcos, Texas and due diligence costs related to a potential acquisition that management decided not to pursue. These three
write-offs totaled $1.6 million, or $650 thousand after minority interest and income taxes.

The Company recorded a $3.4 million net charge to selling and administrative expenses, for a negative net income impact of
$1.4 million after minority interest and income taxes, related to Canadian division sales and purchases recorded in Canadian
dollars but settled in U.S. dollars and accumulated Canadian cash balances denominated in U.S. dollars. In a period of a
strengthening Canadian dollar, sales from the Canadian divisions that are recorded in Canadian dollars and subsequently settled
in U.S. dollars result in a loss; conversely, purchases result in a gain. Accumulated Canadian cash balances denominated in
U.S. dollars result in a loss. The opposite would occur in a period of a weakening Canadian dollar. In 2003, because such sales
exceeded purchases, significant U.S. dollar cash balances existed in Canada, and the Canadian dollar strengthened, the
Company incurred a net charge. In recent previous years, any such gains or losses have been insignificant. The Company does
not hedge this activity with derivative financial instruments and therefore is exposed to future gains or losses based on levels of
sales and purchases and the strengthening or weakening of the Canadian dollar versus the U.S. dollar.

Although the Company suffered a $3.4 million net charge because of the strengthening Canadian dollar versus the U.S. dollar, this
situation also resulted in a $2.5 million pre-tax benefit, or a positive net income impact of $1.0 million after minority interest and
income taxes, from translating operating income of Canadian operations at a higher rate. More significantly, the strengthening
Canadian dollar also resulted in a $13.7 million foreign currency translation adjustment gain, which increased accumulated other
comprehensive income during 2003. Other comprehensive income is only reflected as an increase in stockholders’ equity in the
balance sheet and statement of stockholders’ equity and is not reflected in results of operations in the statement of income.

Cost of sales for 2003 was 64.9% of net sales, compared to 65.0% for 2002. Increased warranty expenses and additional costs of

shutting down production at the Barrington, New Jersey plant and transferring it to Sparta, Tennessee and other plants were offset

by cost savings in certain raw materials. Selling and administrative expenses for 2003 were 25.3% of net sales, compared to 25.0%
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in 2002. This reflects the $3.4 million net charge related to foreign cwrency transaction and monetary asset losses of Canadian
operations and the increased legal and acquisition due diligence costs mentioned above. In addition, advertising and research and
development expenses increased slightly as a percentage of sales, but information technology expenses decreased.

In 2003, interest expense was $0.9 million and interest income was $1.2 million (net interest income of $0.3 miltion). In 2002,
interest expense was $1.5 million and interest income was $1.3 million (net interest expense of $0.2 million). Interest expense
was lower because of significantly lower debt. The monthly average debt balance in 2003 was $23.7 million compared to a
monthly average debt balance in 2002 of $40.1 million. Although cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments increased
during 2003, interest income was lower because of lower interest rates. The monthly average cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments balance in 2003 was $109.6 million compared to $82.2 million in 2002,

Because the Company was in a net cash position, a hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would result in an increase of $1.6
million in net interest income, or a positive net income impact of $0.8 million. The estimated increase is based upon the volume
and composition of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, and debt at December 31, 2003,

Minority interest primarily represents the 32% ownership share of GTG income by Thomas. It also includes the 49.5% ownership
share of Lumec-Schreder income by a Belgian holding corporation of the Schreder Group.

The effective income tax rate was 39.0% for 2003, up from 38.6% for 2002. The increase is due to higher state and local tax rates as
well as expanding to an additional state jurisdiction with the acquisition of Shakespeare.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

Net sales for 2002 were $970.3 million, decreasing by $14.9 million, or 1.5%, from 2001 net sales of $985.2 million. The
commercial and industrial construction markets in which the Company operates remained soft throughout the entire year. The
residential market, however, was relatively strong. Management believes that the Company gained market share during 2002,
because the primary markets served by the Company decreased by approximately 10%, which is more than the Company’s
1.5% sales decline.

The Company operates primarily in the commercial lighting markets, with 73.2% of its 2002 net sales coming from the
Commercial segment. This percentage is up slightly from 72.3% in 2001. Net sales of $710.2 million for the Commercial
segment in 2002 decreased just 0.3% from 2001 net sales of $712.7 million. The segment’s three primary commercial markets
were very soft in 2002. The retail construction market, particularly high-end retail, was in a decline. The office construction
market was soft due to the excess office space in many large cities. The hospitality construction market, which includes major
hotels and restaurants, was soft compared to recent years, but began to improve in the second half of the year. The segment’s
fluorescent and downlighting business struggled because of the soft market conditions, which caused downward pricing
pressures from competitors. Overall, considering the softness of the commercial construction markets, the Commercial
segment’s sales were relatively strong.

Although the residential construction market has remained one of the stronger areas of the U.S. economy, net sales in the
Residential segment declined in proportion to the Company’s overall sales decrease. Residential segment net sales of $132.4
million in 2002 and $134.3 million in 2001 were 13.6% of Company net sales both years. The segment’s strategy has been to
reduce emphasis in the do-it-yourself business and concentrate on higher margin business. The strategy has improved the
segment’s overall profitability, as operating profit as a percentage of net sales was 12.0% in 2002, compared to 9.6% in 2001.
The Residential segment has significantly improved its profitability the last two years.

The Industrial and Other segment accounts for all remaining net sales and declined as a percentage of total Company net sales:
13.2% in 2002 and 14.1% in 2001. Net sales of $127.7 million for the Industrial and Other segment in 2002 decreased 7.6%
from 2001 net sales of $138.2 million. The decrease in 2002 net sales is attributable to the soft industrial construction market
as well as significantly decreased sales to one large customer. However, the Company does not have any customers that
constitute as much as 10% of total net sales. Except for the impact of possible future acquisitions, management does not expect
a significant change in the ratio of each segment’s net sales to total Company net sales in the foreseeable future.

U.S. operations accounted for all of the Company’s net sales decrease in 2002. Net sales for the Canadian operations increased
5.2% compared to last year, while net sales for the U.S. operations decreased 2.7%. Also, the weakening of the Canadian
dollar during 2002 compared to 2001 reduced U.S. dollar sales of Canadian operations approximately $2.4 million. If the
exchange rate had remained constant, net sales of Canadian operations would have increased 6.8%.
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During the first quarter of 2002, the Company acquired an additional equity interest in the Lumec-Schreder joint venture,
which provided the Company controlling interest in the joint venture, and therefore its balance sheet and income statement are
now fully consolidated. This resulted in consolidating sales of $7.1 million for Canadian operations in 2002. If not for these
Lumec-Schreder sales, net sales of Canadian operations would have increased only 0.4% during 2002. Lumec-Schreder’s total
assets were $3.3 million as of December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2001, the Company’s equity method investment in the
joint venture was $0.7 million.

Net income for 2002 was $41.1 million ($3.01 per diluted share), a 10.1% increase over 2001 net income of $37.3 million
($2.77 per diluted share). Substantially all of this increase was the result of the change in accounting rules regarding the
amortization of goodwill. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”) and ceased amortizing goodwill. Had the Company accounted for
goodwill the same way in 2001, net income would have been $40.5 million ($3.01 per diluted share). Net income was also
favorably impacted in 2002 by lower net interest expense, which had a positive after-tax effect of $1.3 million ($0.10 per
diluted share), and a lower effective tax rate, which had a positive effect of $0.9 million ($0.07 per diluted share).

In addition, 2002 net income was adversely impacted by several unusual items that did not impact 2001. These include the first
quarter expenses associated with closing the plants in Tijuana, Mexico and Milan, Illinois, patent and Keene litigation
expenses, a litigation settlement, and the costs of shutting down production at the Barrington, New Jersey plant and transferring
it to Sparta, Tennessee and other plants. These items totaled $6.3 million in expense, or $2.9 million after minority interest and
taxes ($0.21 per diluted share).

The 2002 gross profit percentage (to net sales) of 35.0% was slightly lower than the 2001 gross profit percentage of 35.4%.
The decrease was primarily the result of the expenses associated with the plant closings and production transfers mentioned above,
workers’ compensation, and casualty insurance costs, offset by a more favorable mix of products sold (i.e. products with higher
gross profit).

Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales decreased to 25.0% in 2002, from 25.4% in 2001, despite increases
in insurance and legal expenses. Management has been very diligent in controlling selling and administrative expenses to keep
them in line with lower sales volume. Offsetting the increases in casualty insurance, group health insurance, and legal
expenses were decreases in freight expense, research and development, advertising, and information technology expenses.

In 2002, interest expense was $1.5 million and interest income was $1.3 million (net interest expense of $0.2 million). [n 2001,
interest expense was $3.8 million and interest income was $0.5 million (net interest expense of $3.3 million). Interest expense
was lower because of significantly lower debt, and interest income was higher because of significantly higher cash. The
monthly average debt balance in 2002 was $40.1 million compared to an average debt balance in 2001 of $67.4 million. The
average cash balance in 2002 was $82.2 million compared to an average cash balance in 2001 of $33.3 million.

A hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would result in an increase of $510 thousand in pre-tax income. The estimated
increase 1s based upon no change in the volume or composition of cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, or debt at
December 31, 2002.

Minority interest primarily represents the 32% ownership share of GTG income by Thomas. It also includes the 49.5%
ownership share of Lumec-Schreder income by a Belgian holding corporation of the Schreder Group.

The effective income tax rate was approximately 38.6% in 2002, down from 40.0% in 2001. The decrease in the effective tax
rate is a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142 discussed above. Because most of the Company’s goodwill was never
amortizable for income tax purposes, the financial reporting income subject to tax did not significantly change. This resulted in
a lower effective tax rate and little impact on the current tax liability.
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Outlook for the Future

Management does not expect the primary construction markets that the Company serves to improve significantly until at least
the second half of 2004. Although the Company did see some strengthening in the commercial and industrial construction
markets in the fourth quarter of 2003, they are projected to remain relatively weak through the first half of 2004, When
construction does pick up, it will not begin to impact the Company until 2005, since lighting is installed toward the end of a
construction project. The residential construction market has been maintaining a strong pace, so it is not projected to improve
either. Conversely, the Company’s sales have been relatively healthy, and management does not expect a downturn as long as
interest rates remain low. A significant increase in interest rates would be concerning to management. Overall, management
anticipates the current trend of soft sales for its stock products to continue, while project business is improving for some
divisions.

Although the Company has realized some benefit from the price increase announced in January of 2003, it has been minimal,
and management believes it will remain minimal as long as construction market conditions remain weak. In response to the
weak market conditions, management is continuing with the following plans: ongoing industry leadership in product
development and new product introductions; refocusing the sales force on the more robust markets of schools, museums, and
healthcare; and continuing cost control.

Although foreign currency rates are unpredictable, management does not expect the Canadian dollar to continue to strengthen
versus the U.S. dollar as much as it did during 2003. If the Canadian dollar exchange rate stabilizes, the Company will not
continue to realize the foreign currency transaction losses of Canadian operations, although it will continue to realize the benefit of
translating sales and income at higher exchange rates compared to the preceding year. If the Canadian dollar weakens, the
Company should realize some foreign currency transaction gains. High insurance expenses and legal costs experienced during
2003 are expected to continue. In addition, freight costs are expected to increase.

Management expects Vari-Lite’s operating results to improve from the break-even performance of 2003. Vari-Lite’s operating
results have improved each quarter, and management believes Vari-Lite will be more profitable in 2004. The Shakespeare
composite pole business acquired in May 2003 has been profitable and is expected to perform even better in 2004.

The U.S. Senate and the House of Representatives both passed energy bills in 2003. These bills include goals for federal energy
efficiency including federal building requirements and requirements for the federal government to purchase new energy
efficient products, including lighting fixtures. In addition, they include tax incentives for businesses to install new energy
efficient products, including lighting. Management believes passage of this energy legislation may have a positive impact on
retrofit lighting business in the U.S., and may provide significant additional business opportunities for the Company in 2004
and for the next three to five years.

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company focuses on its net cash (cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments minus total debt) and working capital
as its most important measures of short-term liquidity. For long-term liquidity, the Company considers its ratio of total debt to
total capital employed (total debt plus total stockholders’ equity) and trends in net cash and cash provided by operating
activities to be the most important measures. From both a short-term and a long-term perspective, the Company’s liquidity is
exceptionally strong.

The Company is in a net cash position (cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments exceed total debt by $141.1 million)
at December 31, 2003, compared to net cash of $74.8 million at December 31, 2002. Total debt decreased to $11.5 million at
December 31, 2003, compared to $37.1 million at December 31, 2002, while cash, cash equivalents, and short-term
investments increased to $152.6 million at December 31, 2003, compared to $111.9 million at December 31, 2002. The
decrease in debt was mainly due to repayment of approximately $13.3 million in Canadian dollar notes obtained to finance the
Ledalite acquisition in 1999, repayment of a $7.6 million industrial revenue bond obtained to finance a plant expansion and
paint line at the plant in Littlestown, Pennsylvania, and repayment of a $4.5 million industrial revenue bond related to the plant
in Barrington, New Jersey. The New Jersey bond was repaid because the Barrington plant has been shut down and is for sale.
The Pennsylvania bond was repaid because the project was canceled without using the proceeds.

Working capital at December 31, 2003 was $311.4 million, compared to $259.8 million at December 31, 2002. The primary
reasons for the increase in working capital were a $40.7 million increase in cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments, the
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acquisition of Shakespeare, which added working capital of $5.9 million, and the translation of the account balances of Canadian
operations at higher exchange rates, which increased working capital $1.6 million. Accounts receivable increased $11.8 million
because of $3.9 million added from the Shakespeare acquisition, $3.0 million attributed to translation of Canadian accounts
receivable at a higher exchange rate, and higher sales during the month of December 2003 compared to December 2002. Inventory
increased $7.4 million mainly because of $3.8 million added from the Shakespeare acquisition, and $2.3 million attributed to
translation of Canadian inventory at a higher exchange rate. Current maturities of long-term debt decreased $3.8 million because of
the repayment of the Canadian dollar notes mentioned above. Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased $12.8 million
because of $2.1 million added from the Shakespeare acquisition, $3.7 million attributed to translation of Canadian accounts payable
and accrued expenses at a higher exchange rate, and normal fluctuations due to the timing of cash disbursements. The current ratio
was 2.8 at December 31, 2003, compared to 2.6 at December 31, 2002. This represents the Company’s highest current ratio in the
last twelve years.

The ratio of total debt to total capital employed at December 31, 2003 was reduced to the lowest level in the Company’s history
at 3.1%, compared to 11.2% at December 31, 2002. The Company is in a very good position to add debt if needed. Cash
provided by operating activities has been strong enough for the Company to repay most of its debt and add substantially to its
cash balance. Cash provided by operating activities was $101.2 million in 2003, a record for the Company, compared to $86.4
million in 2002, and $86.9 million in 2001. The 2003 amount included $8.0 million from the patent litigation settiement with
the Lithonia division of Acuity Brands, Inc.

Cash Flows
A condensed consolidated statement of cash flows follows:

For the years ended December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2003 2002 2001
Operating profit $ 108,252 $ 96,418 $ 92,687
Add: Depreciation and amortization 24,207 23,169 28,172
EBITDA* before minority interest 132,459 119,587 120,859
Minority interest (32,594) (29,245) (27,105)
EBITDA#* after minority interest 99,865 90,342 93,754
Interest income (expense), net 324 (213) (3,347)
Taxes on income (29,633) (25,840) (24,895)
Changes in assets and liabilities, and other 30,601 22,071 21,361
Cash provided by operating activities, net 101,157 86,360 86,873
Cash used in investing activities, net (61,101) (61,882) (32,317)
Cash used in financing activities, net (24,697) (5,963) (26,919)
Effect of exchange rate changes (242) (521) (2,397)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 15,117 $ 17,994 $ 25,240

*Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization. This is a “non-GAAP financial measure”

under the Securities and Exchange Commission regulations. Management believes this is a useful
measure because it is included as a key measure in the Company’s credit facilities and it is widely
recognized and used by financial analysts and the financial community.

Cash provided by operating activities in 2003 was $14.8 million higher than 2002, which was virtually the same as 2001. Cash
used in investing activities is comprised of acquisitions of businesses, purchases of property, plant and equipment, less
proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and changes in short-term investments. In 2003, the Company paid
$20.4 million to purchase Shakespeare. In 2002, the Company paid $10.6 million to purchase Vari-Lite, and in 2001, the
Company paid $2.9 million to purchase Entertainment Technology. Purchases of plant and equipment in 2003 were $1.4
million lower than in 2002, which were $1.3 million lower than in 2001. In response to the soft business conditions during the
last two years, management committed fewer funds to capital expenditures. Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment were insignificant in 2003, $1.8 million in 2002, primarily from the sale of building and equipment at the plant in
Milan, Illinois; and $1.6 million in 2001, primarily from the sale of the Hopkinsville, Kentucky distribution center. As the
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Company’s available cash balance was growing, it invested $10.8 million, $34.1 million, and $23.2 million in short-term
investments in 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.

Cash used in financing activities during 2003 was $24.7 million, with $27.4 million in repayments of long-term debt (primarily
the Canadian dollar notes and two industrial revenue bonds mentioned above) offset by $2.7 million of stock options exercised.
The $27.4 million figure for the repayments of long-term debt does not agree with the decrease in long-term debt of $25.6
million mentioned above, because the Canadian dollar notes were translated at a higher exchange rate on the date they were
paid off than the exchange rate in effect on December 31, 2002, when the balance sheet comparison was made. The Company
repurchased no treasury stock during 2003. However, the board of directors has authorized the Company to repurchase up to
5%, or approximately 670,000 shares, of its outstanding common stock under a plan that expires in April 2004. Cash used in
financing activities during 2002 was $6.0 million, with $4.1 million in stock options exercised offsetting payments on debt of
$3.3 million and treasury stock purchases of $6.8 million. The Company purchased 202,800 shares of treasury stock at an
average price of $33.48 in 2002. Cash used in financing activities in 2001 was $26.9 million with a net reduction in debt of
$29.0 million offset by $2.5 million in stock options exercised. Very little treasury stock was purchased in 2001 — just 17,600
shares for § 0.4 million.

Management is confident that currently available cash, combined with internally generated funds, will be sufficient to fund
capital expenditures as well as any increase in working capital required to accommodate business needs in the next year. The
Company continues to seek opportunities to acquire businesses that fit its strategic growth plans. Management believes
adequate financing for any such investments will be available through cash on hand, future borrowings, or equity offerings.

Debt and Other Contractual Obligations

The Company’s debt at December 31, 2003 consisted of $11.0 million in industrial revenue bonds and $0.5 million in capital leases
and other. GTG has a $130 million U.S. revolving credit facility and a $20 million Canadian revolving credit facility with a
syndicate of nine banks. These unsecured facilities mature in July 2006. At December 31, 2003, the Company had no borrowings
and approximately $19.1 million in outstanding letters of credit under these facilities. The letters of credit serve to guarantee the
industrial revenue bonds as well as insurance reserves. The Company is in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2003, excluding current liabilities except
for the current maturities of long-term debt, and the effect such obligations are expected to have on cash flows and liquidity in future
periods (in thousands):

Payments due by period

Less than 1to3 4t05 After

: Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Long-term debt (a) $ 11,160 $ 120 $ 40 $ - $§ 11,000

Capital leases (b) 339 183 156 - -

Non-cancelable operating leases (c¢) 24,943 6,949 8,750 4,937 4,307

Purchase obligations (d) 27,667 27,667 - - -
Other long-term liabilities (e)

Total contractual obligations $ 64,109 $ 34919 $ 8,946 $ 4937 $ 15307

(a) Long-term debt is included in the consolidated balance sheet in Item 8. Also see note (11) in Item 8.

(b) Capital lease debt is included in the consolidated balance sheet in Item 8. Also see note (14) in Item 8.

(¢) Operating lease commitments are described in note (14) in Item 8.

(d) Purchase obligations represent non-cancelable commitments to purchase inventory ordered before year-end.

(e) Other long-term liabilities included in the consolidated balance sheet in Item 8 consist of reserves for pension benefits (see
note (12)), other postretirement benefits (see note (13)), income taxes, and casualty insurance. None of these amounts are
included in the table above because they do not have determinable payment streams.

Other

Under the terms of the Genlyte Thomas Group LLC Agreement (the “LLC Agreement”), Thomas currently has the right (a
“Put Right™), but not the obligation, to require GTG to purchase all, but not less than all, of Thomas’s 32% interest at the
appraised value of such interest. The appraised value shall be the fair market value of GTG as a going concern multiplied by
Thomas’s ownership interest percentage, taking into account a control premium, and determined by an appraisal process to be
undertaken by recognized investment banking firms chosen initially by Genlyte and Thomas. If GTG cannot secure the
necessary financing with respect to Thomas’s exercise of its Put Right, then Thomas has the right to cause GTG to be sold.
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At any time after Thomas exercises its Put Right, Genlyte has the right, in its sole discretion and without the need of approval
of Thomas, to cause GTG to be sold by giving notice to the GTG Management Board, and the Management Board must then
proceed to sell GTG subject to a fairness opinion from a recognized investment banking firm. Genlyte also has the right to
cause GTG to assign the rights to purchase Thomas’s interest to Genlyte. Genlyte also has the right to cause GTG to incur
indebtedness or to undertake an initial public offering to finance or effect financing of the payment of the purchase price.

Also under the terms of the LLC Agreement, on or after the later to occur of (1) the final settlement or disposition of the Keene
litigation described in note (15) “Contingencies” in the ‘“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” section of Item §
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” or (2) January 31, 2002, either Genlyte or Thomas has the right, but not the
obligation, to offer to buy the other’s interest (the “Offer Right”). If Genlyte and Thomas cannot agree on the terms, then GTG
shall be sold to the highest bidder. Either Genlyte or Thomas may participate in the bidding for the purchase of GTG. As of
December 31, 2003, neither Genlyte nor Thomas has the ability to exercise the Offer Right.

If either Genlyte or Thomas were to exercise its rights, causing GTG or Genlyte to purchase Thomas’s interest, Genlyte’s
liquidity and capital resources would be affected.

In 2003, 2002, and 2001, 16.9%, 16.1%, and 15.1%, respectively, of the Company’s net sales were generated from operations in
Canada. In addition, the Company has a production facility in Mexico. International operations are subject to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates. The Company monitors its currency exposure in each country, but does not actively hedge or use
derivative financial instruments to manage exchange rate risk. Management cannot predict future foreign currency fluctuations,
which have and will continue to affect the Company’s balance sheet and statement of income. The cumulative effect of foreign
currency translation adjustments, included in accumulated other comprehensive income, a component of stockholders’ equity, was a
$7.5 million gain as of December 31, 2003. Such adjustments were a gain of $13.7 million in 2003, a gain of $14 thousand in 2002,
and a loss of $2.4 million in 2001. Pre-tax gains and (losses) from translation of foreign currency transactions, which are recorded in
selling and administrative expenses, were $(3.4) million for 2003, $151 thousand for 2002, and $88 thousand for 2001.

Critical Accounting Policies

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” is based on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.

On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions, including those related to sales returns and
allowances, doubtful accounts receivable, slow moving and obsolete inventory, income taxes, impairment of long-lived assets
including goodwill and other intangible assets, medical and casualty insurance reserves, warranty reserves, pensions and other
post-retirement benefits, contingencies, environmental matters, and litigation. Management bases its estimates and assumptions
on its substantial historical experience and other relevant factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Reported results would differ under different assumptions or conditions. Actual results will
inevitably differ from management’s estimates, and such differences could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant estimates and assumptions used in
the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements:

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts receivable for estimated uncollectible invoices resulting from the
customer’s inability to pay (bankruptcy, out of business, etc., which result in “bad debt” write-offs) as well the customer’s
refusal to pay (returned products, billing errors, disputed amounts, etc., which result in credit memos). Management’s
estimated allowances are based on the aging of the invoices, historical collections, customers’ financial status, the overall ratio
of “bad debt” allowances to account receivable balances in comparison to relevant industry data, amounts returned and
disputed by customers, and estimated lag times for processing credit memos. In the opinion of management, these allowances
are adequately established and sufficient to cover future collection problems. However, should business conditions deteriorate
and more customers have financial problems, these allowances may need to be increased, which would have a negative impact
on the Company’s results of operations.
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Reserve for Slow Moving and Obsolete Inventory

The Company records inventory at the lower of cost (generally LIFO) or market. Because of the stability of product costs in recent
years, and the level of gross profit margins on most products, the Company has not made any material adjustments to write down
inventory to market. However, the Company does reserve for excess quantities of slow moving or obsolete inventory. These
reserves are primarily based upon management’s assessment of the salability of the inventory, historical usage of raw materials and
historical demand for finished goods, and estimated future usage and demand. An improper assessment of salability or improper
estimate of future usage or demand, or significant changes in usage or demand could result in significant changes in the reserves and
a positive or a negative impact on the Company’s results of operations in the period the change occurs.

Impairment of Goodwill

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), was issued in
July 2001 and became effective for the Company on January 1, 2002. Goodwill is now subject to an assessment for impairment on a
reporting unit basis by applying a fair-value-based test annually, and more frequently if circumstances indicate a possible
impairment. If a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, and the reporting unit’s carrying value of its goodwill exceeds
the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess.

The evaluation of goodwill for impairment requires management to use significant estimates and assumptions including, but not
limited to, projecting future revenue, operating results, and cash flow of each of the Company’s reporting units. Although
management believes the estimates and assumptions used in the evaluation of goodwill are reasonable, differences between actual
and projected revenue, operating results, and cash flow could cause some of the Company’s goodwill to be deemed impaired. If this
were to occur, the Company would be required to write down the goodwill, which could have a material negative impact on the
Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

Retirement Plans and Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s defined benefit plans are determined on an actuarial basis and are affected by the estimated
market value of plan assets, estimates of the expected return on plan assets, and discount rates. Actual changes in the fair market
value of plan assets and differences between the actual return on plan assets and the expected return on plan assets, as well as
changes in the discount rate, will affect the amount of pension expense recognized, impacting the Company’s results of operations.
The liability for post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is also determined on an actuarial basis and is affected by
assumptions including the discount rate and expected trends in health care costs. Changes in the discount rate and differences
between actual and expected health care costs will affect the recorded amount of post-retirement benefits expense, impacting the
Company’s results of operations.

Self-Insurance for Workers’ Compensation and Medical Claims

The Company is insured for workers’ compensation, but the deductible, $250,000 prior to August 2002 and $500,000 afterwards,
exceeds the vast majority of claims. The insurance provider and administrator, Travelers, provides the Company with estimated
losses and reserve requirements for each open claim based on its expertise and experience. The Company records provisions for
workers’ compensation claims based on the information received from Travelers. The Company also provides reserves for
estimated losses for claims incurred but not reported and the future development of reported claims, based on actuarial and claims
trend analysis performed by the Company’s casualty insurance broker and consultant, Marsh & McLennan Company. Travelers and
Marsh & McLennan use significant judgment and assumptions to estimate the losses and reserve requirements, and although
management believes the current estimates are reasonable, significant differences related to the factors used in making those
estimates could materially affect the Company’s workers’ compensation liabilities and expense, impacting financial condition and
results of operations.

The Company is self-insured for the medical benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company estimates its liability for
claims incurred by applying a lag factor to the Company’s historical claims and administrative cost experience. The validity of the
lag factor is evaluated periodically and revised if necessary. Although management believes the current estimated liabilities for
medical claims are reasonable, changes in the lag in reporting claims, changes in claims experience, unusually large claims, and
other factors could materially affect the recorded liabilities and expense, impacting financial condition and results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation Costs

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“SFAS No. 123”) gives
companies the choice to account for stock-based compensation using either the fair value method or the intrinsic value method
of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” The Company has elected to account for its stock
option plans using the intrinsic value method. Because all options granted under those plans have had an exercise price equal to
the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, no stock-based compensation cost has been recognized
in the consolidated statements of income. Had the Company elected to account for its stock option plans using the fair value

33




method of SFAS No. 123, or if accounting rules change to require accounting different than the intrinsic value method, the
Company’s results of operations could be materially affected.

Note (2) “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Stock-Based Compensation Costs” in the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” includes supplemental information,
including pro forma net income and earnings per share, as if stock-based compensation cost for the stock option plans had been
determined using the fair value method of SFAS No. 123. The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with assumptions about the risk-free interest rate, expected option life, and
expected stock price volatility. These assumptions can be highly subjective. Because Genlyte’s stock options have
characteristics different from those of traded options, and changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measurement of the
fair value of Genlyte’s stock options. Using different assumptions, the supplemental information provided in note (2) could be
materially different.

Income Taxes

Significant management judgment is required in developing the Company’s income tax provision, including the determination of
deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowances that might be required against deferred tax assets. Management has
determined that no valuation allowances are required.

The Company operates in multiple taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in those jurisdictions. Because of the complex issues
involved, any assessments can take an extended period of time to be resolved. In management’s opinion, adequate income tax
provisions have been made and adequate tax reserves exist to cover probable risks. However, results of Internal Revenue Service or
other jurisdictional audits, closing of past years’ tax returns no longer subject to audit, and future tax law changes could have a
material impact on the Company’s future tax liabilities and provisions, impacting financial condition and results of operations.

Contingencies and Litigation

Genlyte is currently named as a party to legal proceedings discussed in note (15) “Contingencies” in the “Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of item § “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” While management currently believes
the ultimate liability, if any, of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial
condition, or liquidity, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain. Were an unfavorable outcome to occur, the impact could
be material to the Company. The Company would accrue the cost of an adverse outcome, if in management’s judgment, the adverse
outcome was probable and the cost could be reasonably estimated. The Company has made no such accruals as of December 31,
2003.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, including
without limitation expectations as to future sales and operating results, constitute “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 19935 (the “Reform Act”). Words such as “expects,” “believes,”
“plans,” “intends,” “estimates,” “forecasts,” and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.
The statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may cause the actual results,
performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to, the following: the highly
competitive nature of the lighting business; the overall strength or weakness of the economy, construction activity, and the
commercial, residential, industrial, and outdoor lighting markets; the ability to maintain or increase prices; acceptance of new
product offerings; passage of an energy bill providing incentives for energy efficient lighting products; the performance of
Vari-Lite and Shakespeare; future acquisitions; availability and cost of steel and other raw materials; casualty and medical
insurance cost increases; freight cost increases; cost savings realized from plant consolidations; the costs and outcomes of legal
proceedings; and foreign exchange rates. The Company could also be affected by changes in tax rates or laws and changes in
interest rates. The Company will not undertake and specifically declines any obligation to update or correct any forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated
or unanticipated events.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company is exposed to market risk for interest rates, prices of raw materials and component parts, and foreign currency
exchange rates in the operation of its business. Each of these risks is discussed below.

The Company earns interest income on its cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments and pays interest expense on its
long-term debt. Because of variable interest rates, the Company is exposed to risk of interest rate fluctuations. However,
because of its net cash position (cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments exceed total debt) and the current low level
of interest rates, management currently believes this risk is not material to the Company’s operating results in the near term.
Interest rates on cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments cannot decrease much further, and an increase in interest
rates would result in an increase in interest income exceeding the increase in interest expense. Based upon December 31, 2003
debt levels, a hypothetical 1% increase in interest rates would result in an annualized increase of approximately $115,000 in
interest expense, reducing net income by $16,000 after minority interest and income taxes. However, based on December 31,
2003 cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments levels, a 1% increase in interest rates would increase interest income
approximately $1,688,000, resulting in an increase of $1,573,000 in net interest income, or $759,000 after minority interest and
income taxes. The estimated increases are based upon no change in the volume or composition of cash, cash equivalents, and
short-term investments or debt at December 31, 2003. The increases also assume short-term interest rates on cash, cash
equivalents, and short-term investments fluctuate “perfectly” with long-term interest rates on debt, which is not likely to occur.
The Company does not use derivative financial products such as interest rate hedges or swaps.

The Company purchases large quantities of raw materials and components -- mainly steel, aluminum, ballasts, sockets, wire,
plastic, lenses, glass, and corrugated cartons. The Company’s operating results could be affected by the availability and price
fluctuations of these materials. The Company uses multiple suppliers, has alternate suppliers for most materials, and has no
significant dependence on any single supplier. No consequential supply problems have been encountered in recent years. Price
risk for these materials is related to increases in commodity items that effect all users of the materials, including the Company’s
competitors. In recent years, few of these materials have had volatile prices, and the primary price trend has been slightly
downward. Although steel tariffs have been abated, global commodity costs for steel, packaging, and some other commodities
have recently increased significantly due to the weakening U.S. dollar. Historically, the Company has attempted to pass along
significant price increases in its materials in industry-wide price adjustments to customers, to mitigate the Company’s exposure
to supplier price fluctuations. However, such price adjustments are subject to competitive pressure. The Company does not
actively hedge or use derivative instruments to manage its risk in this area.

In 2003, approximately 17% of the Company’s net sales were generated from operations in Canada. Although the majority of
these products were manufactured and sold within Canada, a significant amount were manufactured in Canada and sold to U.S.
customers. As of December 31, 2003, approximately 19% of the Company’s total assets were in Canada. The Company’s
financial condition and operating results are affected by changes in Canadian dollar exchange rates, but management regards
this risk as manageable and, therefore, does not actively hedge or use derivative instruments in this area. Foreign currency
translation adjustments, which are recorded in the accumulated other comprehensive income component of stockholders’ equity
and do not affect net income, were a credit of $13,719,000 in 2003, a credit of $14,000 in 2002, and a charge of $2,397,000 in
2001. Gains and losses resulting from translation of foreign currency transactions, which do affect net income, were a pre-tax
loss of $3,405,000 in 2003, a pre-tax gain of $151,000 in 2002, and a pre-tax gain of $88,000 in 2001.
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Stockholders of The Genlyte Group Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Genlyte Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for the years then ended. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15 (a) 2 for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. The
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001 were audited by other auditors who have ceased
operations and whose report dated January 18, 2002 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2003 and 2002 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of The Genlyte Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 2, in 2002 the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets.

As discussed above, the financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2001 were audited by other
auditors who have ceased operations. As discussed in Note 2, these financial statements have been revised to include the
transitional disclosures required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (Statement) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” which was adopted by the Company as of January 1, 2002. Our audit procedures with respect to the
disclosures in Note 2 with respect to 2001 included (a) agreeing the previously reported net income to the previously issued
financial statements and the adjustments to reported net income representing amortization expense (including any related tax
effects) recognized in those periods related to goodwill to the Company’s underlying records obtained from management, and
(b) testing the mathematical accuracy of the reconciliation of adjusted net income to reported net income. In our opinion, the
disclosures for 2001in Note 2 are appropriate. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the
2001 financial statements of the Company other than with respect to such adjustments related to Note 2, and accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2001 financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
January 23, 2004
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NOTE: This is a copy of a report previously issued by Arthur Andersen LLP, the Company's former independent
accountants. The Arthur Andersen LLP report refers to certain financial information for the years ended December
31, 2000 and 1999, and certain balance sheet information as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, which are no longer
included in the accompanying financial statements. Arthur Andersen LLP has not reissued this report as Arthur
Andersen LLP ceased operations in August 2002.

Report of Independent Public Accountants
To the Stockholders of The Genlyte Group Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Genlyte Group Incorporated (a Delaware corporation)
and Subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Genlyte Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ Arthur Andersen LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
January 18, 2002
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THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except earnings per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling and administrative expenses
Gain on settlement of patent litigation
Amortization of goodwill
Amortization of other intangible assets

Operating profit
Interest (income) expense, net
Minority interest, net of income taxes

Income before income taxes
Income tax provision

Net income

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

For the years ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2003 2002 2001
'$ 1,033,899 $ 970,304 $ 985,176
671,322 630,433 636,582
362,577 - 339,871 348,594
261,246 242,602 249,900
(8,000)! ; .
- - 5,211
1,079 851 796
108,252 96,418 92,687
(324) 213 3,347
32,594 29,245 27,105
75,982 66,960 62,235
29,633 25,840 24,895
46349 $ 41,120  $ 37,340
344§ 304 S 2.80
3.41 j $ 3.01 $ 2.77
13,480 13,535 13,336
13,597 13,668 13,475



THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, less allowances for doubtful accounts of
$13,456 and $12,838, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
Inventories
Deferred income taxes and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, at cost:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
Other assets
Total Assets

Liabilities & Stockholders' Equity:
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Minority interest

Accrued pension

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (See notes (14) and (15))
Stockholders' Equity:

Common stock ($.01 par value, 30,000,000 shares authorized;
14,481,426 and 14,355,506 shares issued as of December 31, 2003 and 2002;
13,573,395 and 13,447,287 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2003 and 2002)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities & Stockholders' Equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As of December 31,

2003 2002
82,136 $ 67,019
70,479 44 887
160,111 148,279
143,898 136,470
28,602 27,915
485,226 424,570
8,211 7,447
88,718 81,764
290,578 276,600
387,507 365,811
275,883 258,235
111,624 107,576
150,532 134,231
21,315 22,195
5,028 3,841
773,725 $ 692,413
284 $ 4,100
98,114 87,568
75,431 73,133
173,829 164,801
11,190 33,028
35,577 32,935
159,632 . 133,789
27,567 25,406
8,562 8,469
416,357 398,428
136 135
12,988 9,451
314,420 268,071
29,824 16,328
357,368 293,985
773,725 $ 692,413




THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands)

Accumulated
Common Stock Other Total
Number Additional Retained Comprehensive  Stockholders'
of Shares Amount  Paid-in Capital Earnings Income Equity

Balance, December 31, 2000 13,263 § 133 8 7,557 § 189,611 § 29,864 § 227,165

Net income - - - 37,340 - 37,340
Increase in minimum pension liability, before tax - - - - (4,368) (4,368)

Related tax effect - - - - 1,747 1,747
Increase in minimum pension liability, after tax - - - - (2,621) (2,621)
Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - (2,397) (2,397)

Total comprehensive income - - - 37,340 (5,018) 32,322

Exercise of stock options 188 2 2,555 - - 2,557

Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options - - 957 - - 957
Purchases of treasury stock (18) - (436) - - (436)

Balance, December 31, 2001 13,433 135 10,633 226,951 24,846 262,565

Net income - - - 41,120 - 41,120
Increase in minimum pension liability, before tax - - - - (12,717) (12,717)

Related tax effect - - - - 4,185 4,185
Increase in minimum pension liability, after tax - - - - (8,532) (8,532)

Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - 14 14

Total comprehensive income - - - 41,120 {(8,518) 32,602

Exercise of stock options 217 2 4,142 - - 4,144

Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options - - 1,463 - - 1,463
Purchases of treasury stock (203) (2) (6,787) - - (6,789)

Balance, December 31, 2002 13,447 135 9,451 268,071 16,328 293,985
"Net income ST T T T T T LT 46349 . 46,349 -
‘Increase in minimum pension liability, before tax - - - - (323) (323)

Related tax effect - - - - 100 100
'Increase in minimum pension liability, after tax - - - - (223) (223)
‘Foreign currency translation adjustments - - - - 13,719 13,719,
Total comprehensive income - - - 46,349 13,496 39,845
‘Exercise of stock options 126 1 2,712 - - 2,713
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options - - 825 - - 825"
{Balance, December 31, 2003 B 13,573 § 136 § 12,988 § 314420 § 29,824 § 357,368

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 46,349 $§ 41,120 $ 37,340
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 24,207 23,169 28,172
Net loss (gain) from disposals of property, plant and equipment 1,131 1,010 (807)
Provision for deferred income taxes 1,573 2,769 2,662
Minority interest 25,666 10,465 12,327

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (3,261) (5,470) 1,944
Inventories (663) 2,069 19,419
Deferred income taxes and other current assets (41) 465 1,069
Intangible and other assets (2,778) 8,195 5,017
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 6,244 4,463 (15,353)
Accrued expenses (352) 2,729 (3,650)
Deferred income taxes, long-term 235 (6,428) (2,460)
Accrued pension and other long-term liabilities 1,927 1,318 315
All other, net 920 486 878
Net cash provided by operating activities 101,157 86,360 86,873
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash received (20,350) (10,641) (2,900)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (17,559) (18,912) (20,250)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 31 1,807 1,597
Purchases of short-term investments (126,998) (157,198) (31,614)
Proceeds from sales of short-term investments 103,775 123,062 20,850
Net cash used in investing activities (61,101) (61,882) (32,317)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt - - 14,000
Repayments of long-term debt (27,410) (3,318) (43,040)
Purchases of treasury stock - (6,789) (436)
Exercise of stock options 2,713 4,144 2,557
Net cash used in financing activities (24,697) (5,963) {26,919)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (242) (521) (2,397)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 15,117 17,994 25,240
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 67,019 49,025 23,785
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 82,136 $ 67,019 $ 49,025

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Cash paid (received) during the year for:
Interest (received) paid, net $ (129) % 1,013 3,806
Income taxes, net of refunds of $823, $289, and $3,596, respectively § 30453 § 20,742 $ 17,235

o

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Note: Throughout these notes, the term “Company” as used herein refers to The Genlyte Group Incorporated, including the
consolidated results of The Genlyte Group Incorporated and all majority-owned subsidiaries.

(1) Description of Business

The Genlyte Group Incorporated (“Genlyte”), a Delaware corporation, is a United States based multinational corporation. The
Company designs, manufactures, markets, and sells lighting fixtures, controls and related products for a wide variety of
applications in the commercial, residential, and industrial markets in North America. The Company’s products are marketed
primarily to distributors who resell the products for use in commercial, residential, and industrial construction and remodeling.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Genlyte and all
majority-owned subsidiaries, after elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions. These statements include the
accounts of Genlyte Thomas Group LLC (“GTG”). See note (3) “Formation of Genlyte Thomas Group LLC.”

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from the estimates.

Revenue Recognition: The Company records sales revenue when products are shipped, which is when legal title passes to the
customer and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred. Provisions for estimated returns, allowances, discounts,
and rebates are recorded as sales deductions.

Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs: Shipping and handling costs associated with storage and handling of finished goods
and handling of shipments to customers are included in cost of sales. Outbound freight for shipments to customers is included
in selling and administrative expenses and amounted to $49,017 in 2003, $45,724 in 2002, and $50,552 in 2001. Sometimes
outbound freight is billed to the customer. Such fees are included in net sales and amounted to $8,228 in 2003, $7,372 in
2002, and $7,502 in 2001.

Stock-Based Compensation Costs: At December 31, 2003, the Company had two stock-based compensation (stock option)
plans, which are described more fully in note (16) “Stock Options.” The Company accounts for these plans using the intrinsic
value method of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”), as permitted under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ and SFAS No.
148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.”
Because all options granted under these plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant, no stock-based compensation cost has been recognized in the consolidated statements of income. Had
stock-based compensation cost for the plans been determined using the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, the
effect on the Company’s net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31 would have been as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Net income, as reported : $ 46,349 $ 41,120 $ 37,340
Stock-based compensation cost using ‘
Fair value method, net of related tax effects 1,792 2,171 1,365
Net income, pro forma $ 44,557 $ 38,949 $ 35,975
Earnings per share:
Basic, as reported § 344 § 3.04 $§ 2380
Basic, pro forma $§ 329 $ 288 $§ 270
Diluted, as reported § 341 $§ 3.01 $ 277
Diluted, pro forma $§ 326 § 285 § 267
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Advertising Costs: The Company expenses advertising costs principally as incurred. Certain catalog, literature, and display
costs are amortized over their useful lives, from 6 to 24 months. Total advertising expenses, classified as selling and
administrative expenses, were $10,004 in 2003, $8,538 in 2002, and $10,373 in 2001.

Research and Development Costs: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. These expenses, classified as
selling and administrative expenses, were $10,343 in 2003, $8,521 in 2002, and $9,359 in 2001.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date
of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments: Short-term investments are classified as available-for-sale securities and include the following:
commercial paper with a maturity of 120 days, term deposits with a maturity of one year that can be cashed penalty free any
time after 30 days, and tax advantaged debt securities with original maturities ranging from eleven to 32 years. However,
these debt securities are callable at par value (cost) based on seven to 35 days notification to the bondholders and normally are
held for less than one year. They are carried on the balance sheet at fair market value, which is equivalent to cost. Current
period adjustments to the carrying value of available-for-sale securities would be included in accumulated other
comprehensive income within stockholder’s equity. Because of the nature of all of these investments, cost does not differ
from fair market value, so there are no such adjustments to the carrying value.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable: The Company maintains allowances for doubtful accounts receivable for
estimated uncollectible invoices resulting from the customer’s inability to pay (bankruptcy, out of business, etc., i.e. “bad
debts” which result in write-offs) as well as the customer’s refusal to pay (returned products, billing errors, disputed amounts,
etc., which result in credit memos). Management’s estimated allowances are based on the aging of the invoices, historical
collections, customers’ financial status, the overall ratio of “bad debt” allowances to account receivable balances in
comparison to relevant industry data, amounts returned and disputed by customers, and estimated lag times for processing
credit memos.

Concentration of Credit Risk: Assets that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk are cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, and accounts receivable. The Company invests its cash equivalents primarily in high-
quality institutional money market funds with maturities of less than three months and limits the amount of credit exposure to
any one financial institution. Investment policies have been implemented that limit short-term investments to investment
grade securities in multiple funds with multiple financial institutions which limits the Company’s exposure. The Company
provides credit to most of its customers in the ordinary course of business, and collateral or other security may be required in
certain infrequent situations. The Company conducts ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for
potential credit losses. Concentration of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited due to the wide variety of
customers and markets to which the Company sells. No single customer accounts for more than 10% of annual sales. As of
December 31, 2003, management does not consider the Company to have any significant concentration of credit risk.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and include materials, labor, and overhead. Inventories at
December 31 consisted of the following:

2003 2002
Raw materials $ 54,371 $ 53,428
Work in process 17,228 15,104
Finished goods 72,299 67,938
Total inventories $ 143,898 $ 136,470

Inventories valued using the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method represented approximately 80% of total inventories at
December 31, 2003 and 83% at December 31, 2002. Inventories not valued at LIFO (primarily inventories of Canadian
operations) are valued using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. On a FIFO basis, which approximates current cost,
inventories would have been $2,781 and $2,337 lower than reported at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During
each of the last three years, certain inventory quantity reductions caused partial liquidations of LIFO inventory layers (in some
cases including the base), the effects of which increased net income by $47 in 2003, $48 in 2002, and $427 in 2001.
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Property, Plant and Equipment: The Company provides for depreciation of property, plant and equipment, which also
includes amortization of assets recorded under capital leases, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Useful lives vary among the items in each classification, but generally fall within the following ranges:

Land improvements 10 - 25 years
Buildings and leasehold improvements 10 — 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 10 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms of the respective leases, or over their estimated useful lives, whichever
is shorter. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment, including assets recorded under capital leases, was
$23,128 in 2003, $22,318 in 2002, and $22,165 in 2001. Accelerated methods of depreciation are used for income tax
purposes, and appropriate provisions are made for the related deferred income taxes.

When the Company sells or otherwise disposes of property, plant and equipment, the asset cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is recorded in selling and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statements of income.

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Renewals and improvements that extend the useful life of an asset are
capitalized and depreciated or amortized over the remaining useful lives of the respective assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are no longer amortized,
but instead are subject to an assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value-based test annually, and more frequently if
circumstances indicate a possible impairment. Goodwill is tested for impairment at a reporting unit level. 1If the carrying value
of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a determination is made of the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If
the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset with an indefinite life exceeds its
fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess. Separate intangible assets that are not deemed
to have an indefinite life continue to be amortized over their useful lives.

The Company tested the goodwill of all of its reporting units, which are a level below the reportable segments disclosed in
note (20) “Segment Reporting,” for impairment during the fourth quarter of 2003 using a present value of future cash flows
valuation method. This assessment did not indicate any impairment.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the Company had goodwill that was amortized straight-line over periods ranging from
10 to 40 years. Had the Company accounted for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142 in 2001, net income and earnings
per share for the years ended December 31 would have been as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Reported net income $ 46,349 $41,120 $ 37,340
Add back: goodwill amortization * - - 3,184
Adjusted net income $ 46,349 $41,120 $ 40,524
Basic earnings per share:
Reported net income § 344 $ 3.04 $ 280
Add back: goodwill amortization * - - 0.24
Adjusted net income % 344 $ 3.04 $ 3.04
Diluted earnings per share:
Reported net income § 341 $ 3.0l $ 277
Add back: goodwill amortization * ; - - 0.24
Adjusted net income § 341 § 3.01 § 301

* Goodwill amortization is after minority interest and tax effects.
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The changes in the net carrying amounts of goodwill by segment for the year ended December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Industrial
Commercial Residential and Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2003 $ 108,183 $ 21,718 $ 4,330 $ 134,231
Acquisition of business 8,309 - - 8,309
Adjustments to goodwill acquired
Previously 1,723 (117) - 1,606
Effect of exchange rate change on
Canadian goodwill 6,295 26 65 6,386
Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 124,510 $ 21,627 $ 4,395 $ 150,532
Summarized information about the Company’s other intangible assets follows:
As of December 31, 2003 As of December 31, 2002
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible assets:
License agreements $ 12,783 $ 1,515 $ 12,500 $ 938
Non-competition agreements 10,550 1,157 10,950 798
Patents and other 938 359 532 126
Total $ 24,271 $ 3,031 $ 23,982 $ 1,862
Unamortized intangible assets:
Trademarks 3 75 $ 75

The Company amortizes the license agreements over their contractual lives of two and 30 years, the non-competition
agreements over their contractual lives of two and 30 years, and patents and other over one to 15 years. Amortization expense
for intangible assets (other than goodwill) was $1,079 in 2003, $851 in 2002, and $796 in 2001. Estimated amortization
expense for intangible assets for the next five full years is $941 for 2004, $907 for 2005, $848 for 2006, $833 for 2007, and
$818 for 2008.

Accounting and Disclosure by Guarantors: Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 45,
“Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others” (“FIN 45”) was issued in November 2002. FIN 45 contains recognition and measurement provisions that require
certain guarantees to be recorded as a liability, at the inception of the guarantee, at fair value. Previous accounting practice
was to record a liability only when a loss is probable and reasonably estimable. FIN 45 also requires a guarantor to make new
disclosures. The recognition and measurement provisions were effective for guarantees issued after December 31, 2002.
Adoption of FIN 45 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations during
2003.

The disclosure requirements of FIN 45 became effective on December 31, 2002. For the Company, the required disclosures
relate only to product warranties. The Company offers a limited warranty that its products are free of defects in workmanship
and materials. The specific terms and conditions vary somewhat by product line, but generally cover defects returned within
one, two, three, or five years from the date of shipment. The Company records warranty liabilities to cover repair or
replacement of defective returned products. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty
liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.
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Changes in the Company’s warranty liabilities, which are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets, during the years ended December 31 were as follows:

2003 2002
Balance, beginning of year 3 $ 1,883 $ 1,247
Additions applicable to businesses acquired ! 1,571 250
Additions charged to expense ! 8,303 3,743
Deductions for repairs and replacements ; 7,723 3,357
Balance, end of year $ 4,034 $ 1,883

Translation of Foreign Currencies: Balance sheet accounts of foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the rates
of exchange in effect as of the balance sheet date. The cumulative effects of such adjustments are charged to the foreign
currency translation adjustment component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Income and
expenses are translated at the weighted-average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Net gains or (losses) resulting from
the translation of foreign currency transactions of $(3,405) in 2003, $151 in 2002, and $88 in 2001 are included in selling and
administrative expenses.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts of cash equivalents and long-term debt approximate fair value
because of their short-term maturity and/or variable market-driven interest rates.

Collective Bargaining Agreements: As of December 31, 2003, the Company had 2,467 employees, or 47.4% of the total
employees, who were members of various collective bargaining agreements. Several of these collective bargaining
agreements, covering 723 employees, which is 29.3% of the collective bargaining employees and 13.9% of the total
employees, will expire in 2004. Management does not expect the expiration and renegotiation of these agreements to have a
significant impact on 2004 production.

Other New Accounting Standards: In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated With
Exit or Disposal Activities,” which was effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS No.
146 nullified EITF Issue 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized at fair value when the liability is incurred. A commitment to an exit or disposal
plan no longer is sufficient basis for recording a liability for those activities. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 in 2003 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued sections of EITF Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a
Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16"), which is effective for
new arrangements, including modifications to existing arrangements, entered into after December 31, 2002. The released
sections of EITF 02-16 address circumstances when a reseller should account for cash consideration received from a vendor as
an adjustment of cost of sales, revenue, or as a reduction to a cost incurred by the reseller. EITF 02-16 gives further
consideration to rebates or refunds of a specified amount of cash consideration that is payable when a customer completes a
specified cumulative level of purchases or remains a customer for a specified time period, which should be recognized as a
reduction of the cost of sales, provided that the amounts are reasonably estimable. The Company adopted EITF 02-16 in the
second quarter of 2003 and it had an immaterial effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations during
the year.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies the accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for contracts entered into or modified
after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The Company does not currently participate
in any hedging activities, nor does it use any derivative instruments.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments, which under previous guidance were
accounted for as equity, must now be accounted for as liabilities. The financial instruments affected include mandatorily
redeemable stock, certain financial instruments that require or may require the issuer to buy back some of its shares in
exchange for cash or other assets, and certain obligations that can be settled with shares of stock. SFAS No. 150 is effective
for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003 and existing financial instruments (if any) effective June
30, 2003. As of December 31, 2003, the Company did not have any of the financial instruments to which SFAS No. 150
applies.
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In December 2003, the FASB issued revised Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46™).
FIN 46 provides guidance on how to identify a variable interest entity (“VIE”) and determine when the assets, liabilities, non-
controlling interest, and results of operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements.
FIN 46 also requires additional disclosures by primary beneficiaries and other significant variable interest holders.
Application of FIN 46 is required for interests in special-purpose entities for years ending after December 15, 2003. The
Company has determined that it has no special-purpose entities. Application of FIN 46 is required for all other types of VIE’s
for periods ending after March 15, 2004. Although the Company does not expect FIN 46 to have a material impact on the
Company’s financial condition or results of operations, it is continuing to evaluate this complex interpretation.

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision of SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits,” to improve financial statement disclosures for benefit plans. The project was initiated by the FASB
in 2003 in response to concerns raised by investors and other users of financial statements about the need for greater
transparency of pension information. SFAS No. 132R requires that companies provide more details about their plan assets,
benefit obligations, cash flows, benefit costs, and other relevant information. SFAS No. 132R is effective for years ending
after December 15, 2003. The Company adopted SFAS No. 132R as of year-end 2003 and has provided the required
disclosures in notes (12) “Retirement Plans™ and (13) “Postretirement Benefit Plans.”

In January 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Moderization Act of 2003 (“FSP FAS 106-17). FSP FAS 106-1 allows
companies to assess the effect of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (“MMA”) on
their postretriement benefit obligations and costs and reflect the effects in the 2003 financial statements, pursuant to SFAS No.
106, “Employer’s Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” Companies are also allowed to make a one-
time election to defer accounting for the effects of MMA until authoritative guidance is issued. The guidance in FSP FAS
106-1 is effective for years ending after December 7, 2003. In accordance with FSP FAS 106-1, the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation and postretirement net periodic benefit costs in the Company’s financial statements and
disclosed in note (13) “Postretirement Benefit Plans™ do not reflect the effects of MMA on the Company’s plans. In addition,
specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy, one of the provisions of MMA, is pending, and that
guidance, when issued, could require the Company to change previously reported information. However, in the Company’s
opinion, any change due to the accounting for the federal subsidy would be immaterial.

Reclassifications: Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These
changes had no impact on previously reported net income or stockholders’ equity.

(3) Formation of Genlyte Thomas Group LLC

On August 30, 1998, Genlyte and Thomas completed the combination of the business of Genlyte with the lighting business of
Thomas (“Thomas Lighting”), in the form of a limited liability company named Genlyte Thomas Group LLC (“GTG”). GTG
manufactures, sells, markets, and distributes commercial, residential, and industrial lighting fixtures and controls. Genlyte
contributed substantially all of its assets and liabilities to GTG and received a 68% interest in GTG. Thomas contributed
substantially all of the assets and certain related liabilities of Thomas Lighting and received a 32% interest in GTG. The
percentage interests in GTG issued to Genlyte and Thomas were based on arms-length negotiations between the parties with
the assistance of their financial advisers.

Subject to the provisions in the Genlyte Thomas Group LLC Agreement (the “LLC Agreement”) regarding mandatory
distributions described below, and the requirement of special approval in certain instances, distributions to Genlyte and
Thomas (the “Members™) will be made at such time and in such amounts as determined by the GTG Management Board and
shall be made in cash or other property in proportion to the Members’ respective percentage interests. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary provided in the LLC Agreement, no distribution under the LLC Agreement shall be permitted to the
extent prohibited by Delaware law.

The LLC Agreement requires that GTG make the following distributions to the Members:

(1) a distribution to each Member, based on its percentage interest, for tax liabilities attributable to its participation as
a Member of GTG based upon the effective tax rate of the Member having the highest tax rate; and

(ii) subject to the provisions of Delaware law and the terms of the primary GTG credit facility, distributions
(exclusive of the tax distributions set forth above) to each of the Members so that Thomas receives at least an
aggregate of $3,000 and Genlyte receives at least an aggregate of $6,375 per year. During 2003 and 2001, GTG
made distributions of $3,000 to Thomas and $6,375 to Genlyte. During 2002, GTG made distributions of $5,000 to
Thomas and $10,625 to Genlyte.
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Also under the terms of the LLC Agreement, at any time on or after January 31, 2002, Thomas has the right (a “Put Right”),
but not the obligation, to require GTG to purchase all, but not less than all, of Thomas’s 32% interest at the appraised value of
such interest. The appraised value shall be the fair market value of GTG as a going concern multiplied by Thomas’s
ownership interest, taking into account a control premium, and determined by an appraisal process to be undertaken by
recognized investment banking firms chosen initially by Genlyte and Thomas. If GTG cannot secure the necessary financing
with respect to Thomas’s exercise of its Put Right, then Thomas has the right to cause GTG to be sold.

At any time after Thomas exercises its Put Right, Genlyte has the right, in its sole discretion and without the need of approval
of Thomas, to cause GTG to be sold by giving notice to the GTG Management Board, and the Management Board must then
proceed to sell GTG subject to a fairness opinion from a recognized investment banking firm. Genlyte also has the right to
cause GTG to assign the rights to purchase Thomas’s interest to Genlyte. Genlyte also has the right to cause GTG to incur
indebtedness or to undertake an initial public offering to finance or effect financing of the payment of the purchase price.

Also under the terms of the LLC Agreement, on or after the later to occur of (1) the final settlement or disposition of the
litigation described in note (15) “Contingencies” or (2) January 31, 2002, either Member has the right, but not the obligation,
to offer to buy the other Member’s interest (the “Offer Right”). If the Members cannot agree on the terms, then GTG shall be
sold to the highest bidder. Either Member may participate in the bidding for the purchase of GTG. As of December 31, 2003,
neither Member had the ability to exercise the Offer Right as the final settlement or disposition of the litigation described in
note (15) “Contingencies” had not yet occurred. Complete details of the Put Right, Offer Right, and appraisal process can be
found in the proxy statement pertaining to the formation of GTG, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by
Genlyte on July 23, 1998.

(4) Gain on Settlement of Patent Litigation

On August 29, 2003, GTG settled a patent infringement lawsuit filed in March 2000 against Acuity Brands, Inc. and its
Lithonia Lighting Division. The United States District Court for the Western District of Kentucky in Louisville had ruled in
January 2003 that Lithonia’s plastic Insta-Lite product infringes GTG’s Quicklight plastic recessed lighting fixture patent.
Lithonia paid GTG $8,000 and also agreed to cease selling the infringing version of its plastic recessed lighting product as of
the end of 2003. The impact of the settlement on the Company’s 2003 operating profit was approximately $6,400, net of
$1,600 of legal expenses, with a $2,600 impact on net income ($.19 per diluted share), after deducting minority interest and
income taxes.

(5) Acquisition of Shakespeare in 2003

On May 27, 2003, the Company acquired certain light pole assets of the Shakespeare Industrial Group with locations in
Newberry, South Carolina and Largo, Florida (Shakespeare), a subsidiary of K2 Inc. based in Carlsbad, California.
Shakespeare manufactures composite decorative, commercial, and utility light poles; transmission and distribution poles;
crossarms; and other composite products. The purchase price of $20,350 (including costs of acquisition), plus the assumption
of $1,752 of liabilities, was funded from cash on hand.

The Shakespeare acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The preliminary determination of
the excess of the purchase price over the fair market value of net assets acquired (goodwill) is $8,309. This is based on a
preliminary purchase price allocation. The Company is gathering additional information about the fair value of intangible
assets and property, plant, and equipment. Accordingly, the amounts recorded will change as the purchase price allocation is
finalized. The operating results of Shakespeare have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since
the date of acquisition. The pro forma results and other disclosures required by SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
have not been presented because Shakespeare is not considered a material acquisition.

(6) Acquisition of Vari-Lite in 2002

On November 18, 2002, the Company acquired the manufacturing assets, intellectual property, and sales division of Vari-Lite
Inc. (“Vari-Lite™), a subsidiary of Dallas, Texas based Vari-Lite International Inc., a designer and manufacturer of highly
advanced automated lighting equipment for the entertainment industry. The purchase price of $10,641, plus the assumption of
$2,510 of liabilities, was funded from cash on hand.

The Vari-Lite acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The final determination of the excess
of the purchase price over the fair market value of net assets acquired (goodwill) was $5,543. As of December 31, 2002, the
preliminary determination of goodwill was $2,891. Goodwill adjustments in 2003 were primarily the result of increasing
reserves for obsolete inventory and warranty exposure. The operating results of Vari-Lite have been included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. The pro forma results and other disclosures
required by SFAS No. 141 have not been presented because the acquisition of Vari-Lite is not considered a material
acquisition.
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(7) Acquisition of Entertainment Technology in 2001

On August 31, 2001, the Company acquired the assets of Entertainment Technology, Incorporated (“ET™), a subsidiary of
privately held Rosco Laboratories, Inc. of Stamford, Connecticut. ET was a manufacturer of entertainment lighting equipment
and controls. Products include the Intelligent Power System line of theatrical dimming equipment and the family of Horizon
lighting controls. The purchase price of $2,900, plus the assumption of $734 of liabilities, was funded from cash on hand.

The ET acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess of the purchase price over the fair
market value of net assets acquired (goodwill) was $1,827. The operating results of ET have been included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. The pro forma results and other disclosures required by SFAS
No. 141 have not been presented because the acquisition of ET is not considered a material acquisition.

(8) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method as prescribed by SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” This method requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Using the enacted tax rates in effect
for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of an asset or liability.

The components of income before income taxes and the provisions for income taxes for the years ended December 31 were as
follows:

2003 2002 2001

Income before income taxes:

Domestic $ 59,157 $ 50,595 $ 47,003

Foreign 16,825 16,365 15,232
Income before income taxes $ 75982 $ 66,960 $ 62,235
Income tax provision (benefit):
Domestic:

Currently payable $ 21,480 $ 15,957 $ 16,767

Deferred 1,469 2,903 2,812
Foreign:

Currently payable 6,580 7,114 5,466

Deferred 104 (134) (150)
Income tax provision $ 29,633 $ 25,840 $ 24,895

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate follows:

2003 2002 2001
Statutory federal rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits 2.9% 2.5% 2.9%
Minority interest share of foreign taxes 1.1% 1.9% 1.1%
Nondeductible portion of amortization and expenses 3% 2% 1.0%
Benefit of deferred tax rate reduction - (.6%) -
Other (-:3%) (.4%) -
Effective income tax rate 39.0% 38.6% 40.0%
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Deferred income taxes are provided for significant income and expense items recognized in different years for tax and

financial reporting purposes. Significant temporary differences creating deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31
follow:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable ‘ $ 3,274 $ 2,797
Inventory reserves \ 5,817 6,277
Accrued compensation expenses 10,475 11,936
Other 6,596 6,052
Total deferred tax assets $ 26,162 $ 27,062
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation $ 6,329 $ 5,819
Gain on formation of GTG 21,648 21,648
Foreign deferred liability ' 3,093 2,547
Investments 9,876 9,776
Other 1,911 1,210
Total deferred tax liabilities 42,857 41,000
Net deferred tax liability $ 16,695 $ 13,938
Classification:
Current asset $ 18,882 $ 18,997
Net non-current liability 35,577 32,935
Net deferred tax liability § 16,695 $ 13,938

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or long-term according to the related asset and liability classification
of the item generating the deferred tax.

Undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries and joint venture companies aggregated $76,458 on December 31, 2003
which, under existing law, will not be subject to U.S. tax until distributed as dividends. Since the earnings have been, or are
intended to be, indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations, no provision has been made for any U.S. taxes that may be
applicable thereto. Furthermore, the taxes paid to foreign governments on those earnings may be used in whole or in part as
credits against the U.S. tax on any dividends distributed from such earnings. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of
unrecognized deferred U.S. taxes on these undistributed earnings.

(9) Earnings Per Share

“Basic earnings per share” represents net income divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. “Diluted earnings per share” represents net income divided by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the incremental dilution of outstanding stock options. A reconciliation of

the Company’s basic and diluted shares in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” for the years ended
December 31 follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

2003 2002 2001
Average common shares outstanding 3 13,480 13,535 13,336
Incremental common shares issuable: Stock option plans 117 133 139
Average common shares outstanding assuming dilution 13,597 13,668 13,475
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(10) Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses at December 31 consisted of the following:

2003 2002
Employee related costs and benefits $ 32,952 $ 32,120
Advertising and sales promotion . 8,869 7,613
Income and other taxes payable 6,105 10,298
Other accrued expenses 27,505 23,102
Total accrued expenses $ 75,431 $ 73,133
(11) Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31 consisted of the following:
2003 2002
Canadian dollar notes S - $ 13,312
Industrial revenue bonds 11,000 23,100
Capital leases and other 474 716
Total debt 11,474 37,128
Less: current maturities 284 4,100
Total long-term debt $ 11,190 $ 33,028

On July 29, 2003, GTG entered into a $130,000 U.S. revolving credit facility and a $20,000 Canadian revolving credit facility
with a syndicate of nine banks. These credit facilities, which mature on July 29, 2006, replaced a $150,000 revolving credit
facility that matured on August 30, 2003. There were no borrowings under either credit facility as of December 31, 2003,
however, GTG had outstanding $19,094 of letters of credit, which reduce the amount available to borrow under the facilities.
Both facilities are unsecured.

The U.S. revolving credit facility bears interest at the election of GTG based upon either (1) the higher of the National City
Bank prime rate or the federal funds rate plus 0.50%, or (2) the Eurodollar Rate (LIBOR) plus the “Eurodollar Margin” (a
margin as determined by GTG’s “Leverage Ratio” (total debt to EBITDA)). The Canadian revolving credit facility bears
interest at the cost of funds determined by Bank One plus the Eurodollar Margin. Based upon GTG’s Leverage Ratio as of
December 31, 2003, the Eurodollar Margin would be 0.40% and the commitment fee on the unused portion of the facility
would be 0.10%. Both facilities contain affirmative and negative covenants that are usual and customary for facilities of this
nature, including limitations on the aggregate amount of additional indebtedness outstanding, a maximum Leverage Ratio, and
a minimum interest coverage ratio. As of December 31, 2003, GTG was in compliance with all of the covenants. Under the
most restrictive covenant, which is the minimum interest coverage ratio, GTG could incur approximately $33,000 in additional
interest charges and still comply with the covenant.

The Company has $11,000 of variable rate demand Industrial Revenue Bonds that mature between 2009 and 2016. As of
December 31, 2003, the weighted average interest rate on these bonds was 1.25%. These bonds are backed by the letters of

credit mentioned above.

Interest expense totaled $923 in 2003, $1,476 in 2002, and $3,844 in 2001. These amounts were offset in the consolidated
statements of income by interest income of $1,247 in 2003, $1,263 in 2002, and $497 in 2001.

The annual maturities of long-term debt are summarized as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2004 $ 284
2005 190
2006 -
2007 -
2008 -
Thereafter 11,000
Total debt $ 11,474
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(12) Retirement Plans

The Company has defined benefit plans that cover certain of its full-time employees. The plans provide defined benefits based
on “years of service” for hourly employees and “years of service and final average salary” for salaried employees. The
Company uses September 30 as the measurement date for the retirement plan disclosure. The Company’s policy for funded
plans is to make contributions equal to or greater than the requirements prescribed by the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act. Pension costs for all Company defined benefit plans are actuarially computed. The Company also has defined
contribution plans, including those covering certain former Genlyte and Thomas employees.

The amounts included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the U.S. and Canadian defined benefit plans, based

on the funded status at September 30 of each year, follow:

U.S. Plans Canadian Plans

2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in Benefit Obligations
Benefit obligations, beginning $ 96,376 $ 86,021 $ 6,405 $ 5,493
Service cost 2,218 1,783 293 185
Interest cost 6,180 6,066 480 403
Benefits paid (5,433) (5,282) (707) (216)
Member contributions - - 81 76
Actuarial loss 8,886 7,788 625 461
Foreign currency exchange rate change - - 1,449 3
Benefit obligations, ending $ 108,227 $ 96,376 $ 8,626 $ 6,405

The accumulated benefit obligations for U.S. defined benefit plans as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 were $99,365 and
$93,866, respectively. The accumulated benefit obligations for Canadian defined benefit plans as of September 30, 2003 and

2002 were $6,539 and $5,374, respectively.

U.S. Plans Canadian Plans

2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in Plan Assets
Plan assets at fair value, beginning $ 69,055 $ 71,089 $ 5495 $ 5642
Actual gain (loss) on plan assets 12,002 (4,780) 825 (427)
Employer contributions 3,658 8,028 739 415
Member contributions - - 81 76
Benefits paid (5,433) (5,282) (707 (216)
Foreign currency exchange rate change - - 1,268 5
Plan assets at fair value, ending $ 79,282 $ 69,055 $ 7,701 $ 5,495

The asset allocation for the Company’s U.S. and Canadian defined benefit plans as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the

target allocation for 2004, by asset category, follow:

U.S. Plans
Target Percentage of Plan Assets at
Allocation September 30,
2004 2003 2002

Asset Category
Equity securities 60% 59.6% 59.4%
Debt securities 40% 40.2% 38.6%
Cash 0% 0.2% 2.0%
Total 100% 100.0% 100.0%
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Canadian Plans

Target Percentage of Plan Assets at
Allocation September 30,
2004 2003 2002

Asset Category
Equity securities — Canadian 33% 34.4% 33.1%
Equity securities — foreign 25% 23.1% 25.5%
Debt securities 37% 37.8% 35.2%
Cash 5% 4.7% 6.2%
Total 100% 100.0% 100.0%

Effective July 1, 2001 the Canadian salaried plan and one of the three Canadian hourly plans were converted from defined
benefit pension plans to defined contribution pension plans with respect to benefit accruals for service on and after that date.
All future benefit accruals for existing hourly members and all new hourly and salaried members will accrue benefits on a
defined contribution basis. Existing active salaried members were given the choice whether or not to convert from defined
benefit accruals to defined contribution accruals for service. In accordance with pension legislation, active hourly members
and salaried members who chose to switch to defined contribution accruals were given the option of retaining their accrued
defined benefit pensions in respect of service prior to the conversion date or converting these pensions to defined contribution
lump sums that would be deposited into their accounts under the plan. Assets totaling $586 were transferred from the defined
benefit pension fund in 2003 to fully satisfy the entitlements for defined benefit pensions accrued prior to the conversion date
for active members who elected such a conversion.

Equity securities included no shares of Genlyte common stock at December 31, 2003 or 2002.

The Company’s investment philosophy is to earn a reasonable return without subjecting plan assets to undue risk. It uses three
institutional investment management firms in the U.S. and one in Canada to manage plan assets, which are invested in high
quality equity and debt securities. The Company’s investment objective for U.S. plan assets is to exceed the return generated
by an unmanaged index composed of the S&P 500 Stock Index and the Lehman Brothers Government/Corporate Bond Index
in proportion to the target portfolio, while achieving a rate of return greater than the actuarially assumed rate. The U.S.
targeted asset allocation was 60% equity securities and 40% debt securities for 2003. The Company’s investment objective for
Canadian plan assets is to provide superior real rates of return through income and capital appreciation by investing in equity
securities of generally larger companies with above-average earnings growth and a diversified portfolio of Canadian debt
securities. The Canadian targeted asset allocation was 33% Canadian equity securities, 25% foreign equity securities, 37%
debt securities, and 5% cash for 2003. The targeted asset allocations provide reasonable assurance that the actuarially
assumed rates of return can be achieved over a long period of time.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $4,400 to its U.S. defined benefit plans and $500 to its Canadian defined

benefit plans during 2004. These amounts are based on the total contributions needed during 2004 to satisfy current law
minimum funding requirements.
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The funded status of the plans, reconciled to the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31 follow:

U.S. Plans Canadian Plans
2003 2002 2003 2002

Funded Status of the Plans
Plan assets (less than) benefit obligations $ (28,945) $ (27,321) $ (925 $ (910)
Unrecognized transition obligation (asset) - - (19 (20)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 27,626 26,076 2,302 1,865
Unrecognized prior service cost 2,181 2,552 278 266
Contributions subsequent to

measurement date 67 67 116 105
Foreign currency exchange rate change - - 214 (5)
Net pension asset 3 929 $ 1,374 $ 1,966 $ 1,301
Balance Sheet Asset (Liability)
Accrued pension (liability) $ (26,948) $ (24,743) § (619) § (663)
Prepaid pension cost 2,199 - - -
Intangible asset 2,267 2,658 307 272
Accumulated other comprehensive income 23,411 23,459 2,278 1,692
Net asset recognized 3 929 $ 1374 $ 1,966 $ 1,301

As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, the projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan
assets for the U.S. defined benefit plans and Canadian defined benefit plans with projected benefit obligations or accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets, were as follows:

U.S. Plans Canadian Plans
2003 2002 2003 2002
Projected benefit obligation $ 101,544 $ 96,376 $ 8,626 $ 6,405
Accumulated benefit obligation 99,365 93,866 6,539 5,374
Plan assets at fair value 72,350 69,055 7,701 5,495
U.S. Plans
2003 2002 2001
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 2,218 $ 1,783 $ 1,782
Interest cost 6,180 6,066 5,893
Expected return on plan assets (5,830) (6,424) (6,585)
Amortization of transition amounts - (8) 10
Amortization of prior service cost 370 370 342
Recognized actuarial loss (gain) 1,165 272 197
Net pension expense of defined benefit plans 4,103 2,059 1,245
Defined contribution plans 4,807 3,570 3,185
Multi-employer plans for certain union employees 222 180 289
Total benefit costs $ 9,132 $ 5,809 $ 4,719
Canadian Plans
2003 2002 2001
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 293 § 185 § 159
Interest cost 480 403 377
Expected return on plan assets (490) (448) (484)
Amortization of transition amounts ¢ (3) (3)
Amortization of prior service cost 21 19 13
Recognized actuarial loss (gain) 82 6 (14)
Net pension expense of defined benefit plans 382 162 48
Defined contribution plans 616 419 284
Total benefit costs $ 998 $ 581 $ 332
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U.S. Plans Canadian Plans

2003 2002 2003 2002
Weighted Average Assumptions
Discount rate 5.95% 6.62% 5.95% 6.62%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% 7.37% 7.75%

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumptions, the Company considered the historical returns
and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as well as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolios. This
resulted in the selection of 8.50% and 7.37% as the long-term rate of return on plan asset assumptions for the U.S. and
Canadian plans, respectively.

(13) Postretirement Benefit Plans
The Company provides postretirement medical and life insurance benefits for certain retirees and employees, and accrues the
cost of such benefits during the remaining expected lives of such retirees and the service lives of such employees.

The amounts included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets for the postretirement benefit plans, based on the
funded status at September 30 of each year, follow:

2003 2002
Change in Benefit Obligations
Benefit obligations, beginning $ 6,891 $ 5,030
Service cost 51 53
Interest cost 380 458
Plan amendments (530) -
Benefits paid (520) (542)
Actuarial (gain) loss (54) 1,892
Benefit obligations, ending $ 6,218 § 6,891
2003 2002
Funded Status of the Plans
Plan assets (less than) benefit obligations $ (6,218) $ (6,891)
Unrecognized prior service cost (491) -
Unrecognized actuarial loss 3,033 3,247
Accrued liability $ (3,676) $ (3,644)
Employer contributions $ 520 $ 542
Benefits paid $ (520 $  (542)
2003 2002 2001
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Costs
Service cost $ 51 $ 53 $ 46
Interest cost 380 458 358
Recognized prior service cost (credit) (39 - -
Recognized actuarial loss 160 158 62
Net expense of postretirement plans $ 352 $ 669 $ 466

The assumed discount rate used in measuring the obligations was 5.95% as of September 30, 2003 and 6.62% as of September
30, 2002. The assumed health care cost trend rate for 2003 was 12%, declining to 5.5% in 2013. A one-percentage-point
increase (decrease) in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase (decrease) the obligation at
September 30, 2003 by approximately $470 $(420), and the 2003 postretirement benefit expense by approximately $37 $(33).

The Company expects to contribute approximately $500 to its postretirement benefit plans during 2004.
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(14) Lease Commitments

The Company rents office space, equipment, and computers under non-cancelable operating leases, some of which include
renewal options and/or escalation clauses. Rental expenses for operating leases amounted to $7,472 in 2003, $7,883 in 2002,
and $9,128 in 2001. Offsetting the rental expenses were sublease rentals of $294 in 2003, $354 in 2002, and $303 in 2001.
One division of the Company also rents manufacturing and computer equipment and software under agreements that are
classified as capital leases. Future required minimum lease payments are as follows:

Operating Capital
Year ending December 31, Leases Leases
2004 § 6,949 $ 183
2005 5,009 156
2006 3,741 -
2007 2,681 -
2008 2,256 -
Thereafter 4,307 -
Total minimum lease payments $ 24,943 339
Less amount representing inierest » 25
Present value of minimum lease payments $§ 314

Total minimum lease payments on operating leases have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $744 due in the
future under non-cancelable subleases.

(15) Contingencies

Genlyte was named as one of a number of corporate and individual defendants in an adversary proceeding filed on June 8, 1995,
arising out of the Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing of Keene Corporation (“Keene™). The complaint is being prosecuted by the
Creditors Trust created for the benefit of Keene’s creditors (the “Trust™), seeking from the defendants, collectively, damages in
excess of $700 million, rescission of certain asset sale and stock transactions, and other relief. With respect to Genlyte, the
complaint principally maintains that certain lighting assets of Keene were sold to a predecessor of Genlyte in 1984 at less than fair
value, while both Keene and Genlyte were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Bairnco Corporation (“Baimco™). The complaint also
challenges Bairnco’s spin-off of Genlyte in August 1988. Other allegations are that Genlyte, as well as other corporate defendants,
are liable as corporate successors to Keene. The complaint fails to specify the amount of damages sought against Genlyte. The
complaint also alleges a violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICO”).

Following confirmation of the Keene reorganization plan, the parties moved to withdraw the case from bankruptcy court to the
Southern District of New York Federal District Court. On January 5 and 6, 1999, the Court rendered rulings restricting the claims
by the Trust against Genlyte and other corporate defendants and dismissing the claims against all remaining individual defendants
except one. The primary effect of the rulings with respect to claims against Genlyte was to require the Trust to prove that the 1984
sale of certain lighting assets of Keene was made with actual intent to defraud present and future creditors of Genlyte’s predecessor.

On March 17, 2003, the Court entered a summary judgment in favor of all defendants in the case. As a result, the case against all
defendants, including Genlyte, was dismissed in its entirety. On April 14, 2003, the Trust filed a Notice of Appeal to the United
States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit from the final judgment entered on March 17, 2003. The Notice claims to bring up
for review all orders, opinions, and decisions previously entered in the action; however, the Trust has since indicated that it would
pursue its appeal only as to certain issues including the dismissal of the fraudulent conveyance claims, but would not pursue its
appeal as to certain other issues, including the dismissal of the RICO claims. Argument on appeal is scheduled for March 24, 2004.

In the normal course of business, the Company is a plaintiff in various lawsuits and is also subject to various legal claims
which arise in the normal course of business, including being a defendant and/or being a potentially responsible party in,
generally, patent, trademark, product liability, environmental and contract claims and litigation. Based on information
currently available, it is the opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of pending and threatened claims against the
Company will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

The Company records liabilities and establishes reserves for legal claims against it when the costs or exposures associated
with the claims become probable and can be reasonably estimated. Because the ultimate outcome of legal claims and litigation
is uncertain, the actual costs of resolving legal claims and litigation may be substantially higher than the amounts reserved for
such claims. In the event of unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of such matters, if
unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on results of operations of the Company in future periods.
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(16) Stock Options

The purpose of the Genlyte 2003 Stock Option Plan is to enhance the profitability and value of Genlyte. Eligibility under this
Plan shall be determined by the Compensation Committee of the Genlyte Board of Directors in its sole discretion. The Plan
replaced the 1998 stock option plan, options under which are currently outstanding. The Plan provides that an aggregate of up
to 2,000,000 shares of Genlyte common stock may be granted as incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options,
provided that no options may be granted if the number of shares of Genlyte common stock that may be issued upon the
exercise of outstanding options would exceed the lesser of 2,000,000 shares of Genlyte common stock or 10% of the issued
and outstanding shares of Genlyte common stock.

The option exercise prices are established by the Compensation Committee of the Genlyte Board of Directors and cannot be
less than the greater of the fair market value of a share of Genlyte common stock on the date of grant, or the par value of
Genlyte common stock. The term of each option and the vesting schedule (if any) shall be fixed by the Compensation
Committee, but no option shall be exercisable more than seven years after the date the option is granted.

Transactions under the 2003 and 1998 Stock Option Plans are summarized below:

Weighted
Average
Number of  Exercise Price

Shares Per Share
Outstanding December 31, 2000 688,412 $ 17.79
Granted 211,000 27.52
Exercised (183,650) 13.71
Canceled (50,127) 19.82
Outstanding December 31, 2001 665,635 21.93
Granted 275,500 31.13
Exercised (228,860) 19.24
Canceled (27,050) 20.58
Outstanding December 31, 2002 685,225 26.64
Granted 269,350 27.95
Exercised (113,620) 21.42
Canceled (26,275) 25.75
Outstanding December 31, 2003 814,680 $ 27.83

Exercisable at End of Year

December 31, 2001 294,885 $ 19.29
December 31, 2002 173,825 19.65
December 31, 2003 185,780 $ 22.86

Additional information about stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2003 is summarized below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price
$14.95-518.60 30,600 2.0 $ 17.83 30,600 § 17.83
$18.61 - §22.25 71,780 2.1 19.94 71,780 19.94
$22.26 - $25.90 44,500 4.2 24.93 22,750 2491
$25.91 - $29.55 359,800 5.1 27.38 54,400 27.75
$29.56 - $33.21 289,000 5.0 31.15 6,250 31.00
$33.22 - 540.51 19,000 6.0 38.64 - -
814,680 4.7 § 27.83 185,780 $ 22.86

58




The Company accounts for its stock options using the intrinsic value method of APB 25 and related interpretations. Because
all options granted have had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant,
no stock-based compensation has been recognized. Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share, as if
stock-based compensation cost had been determined using the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, is provided
in note (2) “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Stock-Based Compensation Costs.” The weighted average fair
values used in the calculations of stock-based compensation cost for options granted in 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $10.83,
$12.33, and $11.90, respectively. The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate 4.1% 4.1% 4.83%
Expected life, in years 6.0 6.0 6.0
Expected volatility 32.6% 32.6% 35.1%

Expected dividends - - -

The Black-Scholes pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no vesting
restriction and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected stock price volatility. Because Genlyte’s stock options have characteristics different from those of traded options,
and changes in the subjective assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing
models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measurement of the fair value of Genlyte’s stock options.

(17) Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

On September 13, 1999, Genlyte declared a dividend, as of the expiration (September 18, 1999) of the rights issued under the
Stockholder Rights Plan dated as of August 29, 1989, of one preferred stock purchase right for each outstanding share of
Genlyte’s common stock. Under certain conditions, each right may be exercised to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of
Jjunior participating cumulative preferred stock at a price of $105.00 per share. The preferred stock purchased upon exercise of
the rights will have a minimum preferential quarterly dividend of $25.00 per share and a minimum liquidation payment of
$100.00 per share. Each share of preferred stock will have one hundred votes.

Rights become exercisable when a person, entity, or group of persons or entities (“Acquiring Person”) acquires, or 10 business
days following a tender offer to acquire, ownership of 20% or more of Genlyte’s outstanding common stock. In the event that
any person becomes an Acquiring Person, each right holder will have the right to receive the number of shares of common
stock having a then current market value equal to two times the aggregate exercise price of such rights. If Genlyte were to
enter into certain business combination or disposition transactions with an Acquiring Person, each right holder will have the
right to receive shares of common stock of the acquiring company having a value equal to two times the aggregate exercise
price of the rights. Genlyte may redeem these rights in whole at a price of $.01 per right. The rights expire on September 12,
2009. As of December 31, 2003, these rights were not exercisable.

(18) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 consisted of the following:

2003 2002 2001
Gain on formation of GTG $ 33,805 $ 33,805 $ 33,805
Minimum pension liability, after tax (11,489) (11,266) (2,734)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 7,508 (6,211) (6,225)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income $ 29,824 $ 16,328 $ 24,846

(19) Related-Party Transactions

The Company in the normal course of business has transactions with Thomas. In 2001 and part of 2002 these transactions
consisted primarily of reimbursement for shared corporate headquarters expenses such as rent, office services, professional
services, and shared personnel, and interest payments due on the loan to Thomas, which was repaid in November 2001. In
August 2002, Genlyte moved its corporate headquarters to a new office building, which eliminated the majority of the shared
corporate headquarters expenses. As of December 31, 2003, the only shared corporate headquarters expense related to the rent
for a warehouse shared with Thomas. In addition, the Company pays royalties to the Schreder Group, which is the minority
interest holder in a joint venture with the Company’s Lumec division.

The Company had related-party receivables from Thomas of $175 as of December 31, 2003 and related party payables to
Thomas of $139 as of December 31, 2002. The Company had related party payables to the Schreder Group of $205 and $181
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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For the years ended December 31 the Company had the following related-party transactions:

2003 2002 2001

Payments to Thomas for:
Reimbursement of corporate headquarters expenses b 4 $ 230 $ 387
Interest under the loan agreement - - 1,012
Royalties payable to the Schreder Group 205 181 -

(20) Segment Reporting

The Company’s reportable operating segments include the Commercial Segment, the Residential Segment, and the Industrial
and Other Segment. Intersegment sales are eliminated in consolidation and therefore not presented in the table below.
Corporate assets and expenses are allocated to the segments. Information about the Company’s operating segments as of and

for the years ended December 31 follows:

Industrial

2003 Commercial Residential And Other Total
Net sales $ 772,888 $ 129,488 $ 131,523 $ 1,033,899
Operating profit 77,603 17,937 12,712 108,252
Assets 585,793 100,473 87,459 773,725
Depreciation and amortization 18,016 2,760 3,431 24,207
Expenditures for plant and equipment 13,103 2,220 2,236 17,559
2002

Net sales $ 710,168 $ 132,378 $ 127,758 $ 970,304
Operating profit 69,516 15,848 11,054 96,418
Assets 509,371 99,943 83,099 692,413
Depreciation and amortization 16,882 2,862 3,425 23,169
Expenditures for plant and equipment 13,396 1,787 3,725 18,912
2001

Net sales $ 712,662 $ 134,269 $ 138,245 § 985,176
Operating profit 68,029 12,938 11,720 92,687
Assets 468,285 92,308 77,209 637,802
Depreciation and amortization 20,564 3,692 3,916 28,172
Expenditures for plant and equipment 15,634 1,663 2,953 20,250

(21) Geographical Information

The Company has operations throughout North America. Foreign net sales are all from Canadian operations. Foreign long-

lived assets are primarily in Canada, with a minor amount in Mexico.
geographical area as of and for the years ended December 31 follows:

Information about the Company’s operations by

2003 U.S. Foreign Total
Net sales § 858,940 $ 174,959 § 1,033,899
Operating profit 85,373 22,879 108,252
Long-lived assets 224,725 63,774 288,499
2002

Net sales $ 814,219 § 156,085 § 970,304
Operating profit 75,416 21,002 96,418
Long-lived assets 213,843 54,000 267,843
2001

Net sales $ 836,754 $ 148,422 § 985,176
Operating profit 75,845 16,842 92,687
Long-lived assets 220,927 55,150 276,077
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(22) Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarter

2003 1 2 319 %% 4" Full Year
Net sales § 237,913 $ 254,113 § 272,769 $ 269,104 $ 1,033,899
Gross profit 81,830 88,729 96,623 95,395 362,577
Operating profit 20,779 23,055 36,456 27,962 108,252
Net income 8,808 9,834 15,770 11,937 46,349
Earnings per share:

Basic * .65 73 1.17 .88 3.44

Diluted * .65 72 1.16 .87 3.41
Market price:

High 34.05 39.27 45.65 60.55 60.55

Low 26.95 33.89 35.32 41.78 26.95

Quarter

2002 1 2" 3 4" Full Year
Net sales § 232,026 § 247,767 § 248,268 $ 242243  § 970,304
Gross profit 80,220 87,569 86,325 85,757 339,871
Operating profit 20,454 25,049 25,563 25,352 96,418
Net income 8,718 10,678 10,957 10,767 41,120
Earnings per share:

Basic 65 79 .80 .80 3.04

Diluted .64 78 .80 79 3.01
Market price:

High 37.56 45.00 41.80 38.25 45.00

Low 28.62 35.03 31.40 31.16 28.62

* Quarterly earnings per share amounts do not sum to full year amounts because of rounding.

** Operating profit in the third quarter of 2003 included an $8,000 gain on settlement of patent litigation (See note (4)), or
approximately $7,100 net of $300 of legal expenses, with a $2,900 impact on net income ($.21 per share).

(23) Subsequent Event

On January 15, 2004 the Company acquired the assets of New Oxford Aluminum Company, a subsidiary of Lancaster
Malleable Castings Company. The Company plans to continue operating this foundry in its current facility located in New
Oxford, Pennsylvania. The New Oxford Aluminum Company has been a key supplier to the Company’s Hadco division.
Approximately 27% of its 2003 sales were to Hadco and other Company divisions. The purchase price of approximately $450
(including estimated acquisition costs) was funded from cash on hand.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On May 23, 2002, upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of Genlyte dismissed Arthur
Andersen LLP as Genlvte’s independent auditors and appointed Ernst & Young LLP as Genlyte’s independent auditors for the
year ending December 31, 2002, Further information is contained in Genlyte’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on May 31, 2002, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -
15(e)) designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms and to ensure that material information relating to the Company is made known to management,
including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), by others within the Company. The Company
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures under the supervision and with
participation of management, including the CEO and CFQ, as of the end of the period covered by this report on Form 10-K. Based
on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, concluded that these disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

The Company also maintains a system of internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(f) and
15d -15(f)) designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. There were no changes in
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2003 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required with respect to the Directors of Genlyte is included in the “Election of Directors” section of the
Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required with respect to Audit Committee Financial Experts is included in the “Board and Committee
Meetings; Committee Matters Generally” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of
Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required with respect to beneficial ownership reporting is included in the “Compliance With Section 16(a) of
The Securities Exchange Act of 1934” and “Common Stock Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management”
sections of the Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of its salaried employees (including its Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, and Corporate Controller). The Company has filed a copy of this Code of Ethics as Exhibit 14 to this
report on Form 10-K. The Company has also made the Code of Ethics available on its website at http://www.Genlyte.com.

Executive Officers
The Company’s executive officers do not hold specified terms of office, so their service does not “expire.” Present executive
officers are:

Larry K. Powers

Mr. Powers, age 61, has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January 1994 and has been an
employee of the Company since 1983. Mr. Powers has also served as Chairman of the Board since April 2000 and a Director
of Genlyte since July 1993. '

Zia Eftekhar

Mr. Eftekhar, age 58, has served as Vice President — Executive Officer of the Company since April 2001 and President of
Lightolier, the largest division of the Company, since June 1992. He has been an employee of Lightolier since 1968. Mr.
Eftekhar has also served as a Director of Genlyte since February 2001.

William G. Ferko

Mr. Ferko, age 49, has served as Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer of the Company since November
1998. He served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Goss Graphics Systems, Inc. from 1996 to 1998, and held
various financial positions with Tenneco Inc. from 1976 to 1996.

Ronald D. Schneider

Mr. Schreider, age 53, has served as Vice President - Executive Officer of the Company since April 2000 and Vice President
Operations of the Company since August 1998. He served as Vice President and General Manager Commercial & Industrial
Division of Thomas Lighting from January 1997 to August 1998. Mr. Schneider had been an employee of Thomas since
1984.

Raymond L. Zaccagnini

Mr. Zaccagnini, age 54, has served as Corporate Secretary of the Company since February 1999 and Executive Officer — Vice
President Administration of the Company since August 1998 (when GTG was formed from Genlyte and Thomas Lighting).
He served as Vice President of Operations of Thomas Lighting from January 1997 to August 1998. Mr. Zaccagnini had been
an employee of Thomas since 1977.

Daniel R. Fuller

Mr. Fuller, age 49, has served as Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company since February 1999, Vice President and
General Counsel of the Company since February 2000, and General Counsel of the Company from September 1998 to
February 2000. He had been in private law practice from 1978 to September 1998.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required with respect to executive compensation is included in the “Compensation of Directors” and
“Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation” sections of the Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required with respect to security ownership is included in the “Voting Securities and Principal Holders
Thereof” section of the Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required with respect to relationships and related transactions is included in the “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof” sections of the Proxy Statement
for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, pursuant
to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required with respect to accounting fees and services is included in the “Independent Auditors™ section of the
Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Genlyte, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, pursuant to Regulation 14A, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following documents appear in Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and are filed as a part of this
report on Form 10-K:

(a) 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Auditors (Ernst & Young LLP)

Report of Independent Public Accountants (Arthur Andersen LLP)

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Schedule II -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Other schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required
information is included in the consolidated financial statements or notes.

3. EXHIBITS

For a list of exhibits filed as part of this report on Form 10-K, see the Exhibit Index on pages 68 to 70. Exhibits 10.1,
10.3, 10.4, and 10.9 are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed.

(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following reports on Form 8-K were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission during the fourth quarter of 2003 or
subsequently:

A Form 8-K was filed on October 27, 2003, attaching a news release titled “Genlyte Announces Record Third Quarter Earnings of
$1.16 Per Share.”

A Form 8-K was filed on February 12, 2004, attaching a news release titled “Genlyte Announces Record Sales and Earnings in
2003.”

(c) EXHIBITS

The exhibits filed with this report on Form 10-K, as required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K, are incorporated by reference in
or follow the Exhibit Index on pages 68 to 70.

(d) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The financial statement schedule filed with this report on Form 10-K is on page 67.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Genlyte has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED
Registrant

March 12, 2004 /s/ Larry K. Powers
Date: By

Larry K. Powers
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Genlyte and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Larry K. Powers March 12, 2004
Chairman

Larry K. Powers President &

(Principal Executive Officer) Chief Executive Officer
Director

/s/ William G. Ferko March 12, 2004

Vice President
William G. Ferko Chief Financial Officer &
(Principal Financial Officer and Treasurer

Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ David M. Engelman March 12, 2004
Director

David M. Engelman

/s/ Zia Eftekhar March 12, 2004
Director

Zia Eftekhar

/s/ Robert D. Nixon March 12, 2004
Director

Robert D. Nixon, Ph.D.

/s/ John T. Baldwin March 12, 2004
Director

John T. Baldwin
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Year Ended 12/31/03

Allowance for
Doubtful accounts

Year Ended 12/31/02

Allowance for
Doubtful accounts

Year Ended 12/31/01

Allowance for
Doubtful accounts

THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002, AND 2001

Balance at
Beginning
of Year

(1

§ 12,838

$ 13,863

$ 13912

(Amounts in thousands)

Additions
From
Companies

Acquired
(2)

$ 130

$ 229

Additions
Charged to
Costs and

Expenses
(3)

$ 38,098

§ 35,535

$ 36,491

Additions
(Deductions)
Charged
(Credited) Balance at
to Other End
Accounts Deductions of Year
4) (5) (1)
$ (903) $ (36,707) $ 13,456
$ (679) $ (35,906) $12,838
$ (508) $ (36,261) $ 13,863

(1) The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts covers estimated uncollectible invoices resulting from the customer’s
inability to pay (bankruptcy, out of business, etc., i.e. “bad debts” which result in write-offs) as well as the customer’s
refusal to pay (returned products, billing errors, disputed amounts, etc., which result in credit memos).

(2) The amount in 2003 represents the amount acquired from Shakespeare Composite Structures and an adjustment to the
amount acquired from Vari-Lite. The amount in 2002 represents the amount acquired from Vari-Lite. The amount in

2001 represents the amount acquired from Entertainment Technology.

(3) Includes the provision for doubtful accounts or “bad debt expense” charged to selling and administrative expenses, and
returned goods, customer allowances and other credit memos charged to net sales (sales deductions).

(4) The amounts in 2003 and 2002 primarily represent reductions in a Thomas Lighting allowance.

(5) Amounts represent uncollectible accounts written off, less recoveries of accounts previously written off, and credit memos

issued.
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2.2

23

24

25

2.6

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

4.2

43

10.1*

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Merger and Assumption Agreement, dated as of
December 28, 1990, by and between Genlyte and
Lightolier

Master Transaction Agreement dated April 28, 1998
by and between Thomas and Genlyte

Limited Liability Company Agreement of GT
Lighting, LLC (now named Genlyte Thomas Group
LLC) dated April 28, 1998 by and among Thomas,
Genlyte and GTG

Capitalization Agreement dated April 28, 1998 by and

among GTG and Thomas and certain of its affiliates

Capitalization Agreement dated April 28, 1998 by and
between GTG and Genlyte

Financial Statements of Business Acquired and Pro
Forma Financial Information related to the formation
of GTG

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of

Genlyte, dated August 2, 1988

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
Genlyte, dated May 9, 1990

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Genlyte, as adopted
on May 16, 1988

Form of Stock Certificate for Genlyte Common Stock

Stock Purchase Agreement between Genlyte and
purchasers of Genlyte Class B Stock, dated as of June
17, 1988

Rights Agreement, dated as of September 13, 1999,
between Genlyte and The Bank of New York, as
Rights Agent

Management Incentive Compensation Plan
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Incorporated by
Reference to:

Exhibit 10(d) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
March 1991

Exhibit 2.1 to Genlyte’s report on Form &-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 24,
1998

Exhibit 2.2 to Genlyte’s report on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 24,
1998

Exhibit 2.3 to Genlyte’s report on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 24,
1998

Exhibit 2.4 to Genlyte’s report on Form 8-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 24,
1998

Exhibits 99.1 through 99.16 to Genlyte’s report on
Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on November 5, 1998

Exhibit 3(b) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988

Exhibit 3(a) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
March 1993

Exhibit 3(c) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988

Exhibit 4(a) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988

Exhibit 10(a) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988

Exhibit 4.1 to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8-A filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on September 15, 1999

Exhibit 10(i) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988




10.3*

10.4*

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9*

10.10

10.11

10.12

Description

Tax Sharing Agreement between Genlyte and Bairnco
Corporation, dated July 15, 1988

Genlyte 1998 Stock Option Plan

Genlyte 2003 Stock Option Plan

Loan Agreement between Genlyte and the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority dated April 1,
1990, replacing the First Mortgage and Security
Agreement between the New Jersey Economic
Development Authority and KCS Lighting, Inc., dated
December 20, 1984 (assigned to and assumed by
Genlyte effective December 31, 1986)

Loan Agreement between Genlyte and the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority dated June 1, 1990,
replacing the Loan Agreement between KCS
Lighting, Inc. and the New Jersey Economic
Development Authority, dated December 20, 1984
(assigned to and assumed by Genlyte effective
December 31, 1986)

Loan Agreements between Genlyte and Jobs for Fall
River, Inc., dated as of July 13, 1994

Credit Agreement between GTG and the applicable
banks named therein, dated as of August 30, 1998

Form of Employment Protection Agreement between
Genlyte and certain key executives

Financing agreement between Genlyte Thomas Group
Nova Scotia ULC and Bank of Montreal, dated
December 22, 1999

Financing agreement between Genlyte Thomas Group
Nova Scotia ULC and The Toronto-Dominion Bank,
dated December 22, 1999

Financing agreement between Genlyte Thomas Group
Nova Scotia ULC and Royal Bank of Canada, dated
December 22, 1999
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Incorporated by
Reference to:

Exhibit 10(k) to Genlyte’s Registration Statement on
Form 8 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on August 3, 1988

Annex A to Genlyte’s Proxy Statement (Form DEF
14A) for the 1998 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of
Genlyte as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 23, 1998

Annex A to Genlyte’s Proxy Statement (Form DEF
14A) for the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of
Genlyte as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 24, 2003

Exhibit 10(b) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
March 1991

Exhibit 10(c) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission in
March 1991

Exhibit 4(c) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 30, 1995

Exhibit 10 to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-Q filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 16, 1998

Exhibit 99 to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 26,
1999

Exhibit 10(a) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 24, 2000

Exhibit 10(b) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 24, 2000

Exhibit 10(c) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 24, 2000




10.13

10.14

10.15

Description

Loan agreement between Adams County Industrial
Development Authority and GTG, dated as of May 1,
2000

Lease  Agreement between The  Industrial
Development Board of White County, TN and GTG,
and Indenture of Trust between The Industrial
Development Board of White County, TN and
SunTrust Bank, both dated as of September 1, 2001

Credit Agreement dated as of July 29, 2003 among
Genlyte Thomas Group LLC and Genlyte Thomas
Group Nova Scotia ULC and the lending institutions
named therein.

Other Exhibits included herein:

14

21

23.1

23.2

31.1

31.2

321

322

The Genlyte Group Incorporated Code of Ethics
Subsidiaries of The Genlyte Group Incorporated
Consent of Independent Auditors

Information Regarding Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Reference to:

Exhibit 10(a) to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 23, 2001

Exhibit 10(a) to Genlyte's report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 20, 2002

Exhibit 10 to Genlyte’s report on Form 10-Q filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 8,
2003

CEO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
CFO Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

CEO Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906

CFO Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906




EXHIBIT 14

THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED CODE OF ETHICS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Purpose
This Code of Ethics establishes written standards promulgated to deter wrongdoing and to promote (1) honest and
ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and
professional relationships; (2) full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and documents that
The Genlyte Group Incorporated (“Genlyte™) or Genlyte Thomas Group, LLC (“GTG”) files with, or submits to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and in other public communications made by Genlyte or GTG; (3)
compliance with governmental laws, rules, and regulations that apply to Genlyte or GTG.

Honest and Ethical Conduct
Genlyte and GTG (both the “Company”) are committed to integrity in the conduct of their business and require that
all employees perform their duties in an honest, ethical and proper manner. Employees will not engage in any
conduct or activity that could cause embarrassment to the Company or harm its reputation. By doing business in this
manner, the respect of the Company’s customers, suppliers, stockholders, employees, and communities is ensured.
Managers are not only responsible for their own honest and ethical conduct, but also for communicating the letter and
spirit of this policy to employees who report to them, and for setting an appropriate example.

Conflicts of Interest
Also refer to the HR Conflict of Interest policy, which requires all salaried employees to complete an Employee
Conflict of Interest Certification at least annually. The Conflict of Interest Policy is hereby incorporated herein by
reference.

Generally, conflicts of interest are to be avoided, and if unavoidable must be disclosed to and cleared by the
President. A conflict of interest exists if the actions of an employee are, or could reasonably appear to be, influenced
by personal considerations or by actual or potential personal benefit or gain, over and above their duty and obligation
to the Company. Employees are expected to make decisions in the best interests of the Company, and not for
personal gain. Questions about what constitutes a conflict of interest should be directed to the employee’s General
Manager, or the Corporate Vice President, Administration or General Counsel.

Disclosure of Information
Also refer to the HR Reporting Misconduct in Accounting, Financial Reporting, or Auditing Matters policy.

It is the policy of the Company to provide full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandable disclosure in reports and
documents that The Genlyte Group Incorporated or Genlyte Thomas Group LLC files with, or submits to, the SEC
and in other public communications made by the Company. Since the Officers of the Company are responsible for
providing such disclosures, it is imperative that the Officers receive from other employees information and data that
are also fair, accurate, timely, complete, relevant, and understandable. Therefore, it is the policy of the Company that
employees provide to the Officers (and other members of Corporate HQ management) financial information and data,
and any other information or data that is relevant to disclosure in SEC filings or other public communications, that
are fair, accurate, timely, complete, relevant, and understandable.

Record Keeping and Reporting

All accounting and financial record keeping and reporting of information must be honest, accurate, timely, and
complete. Internal accounting controls and procedures must be designed and implemented to reasonably ensure this.
Management recognizes that errors and mistakes occur. In addition, accounting requires significant estimates and
judgements. However, dishonest recording or reporting of information to organizations or people inside or outside
the Company is prohibited. The knowing or deliberate falsification of any documents, records, or reports will be the
basis for immediate dismissal and may subject an employee to civil and criminal sanctions as well. In addition,
failing to record material transactions, or withholding or failing to disclose material information is prohibited.

71




Confidentiality
Confidential information is important to the Company’s success. Employees must protect confidential information

while working at the Company and after leaving the Company. Confidential information includes, but is not limited
to, financial documents, records, and reports; policy manuals and procedures; computer files; information and
documents related to strategy or plans for the future; acquisition targets; product designs; product costs; product
pricing; customer lists, and personnel files. Each salaried employee will be required to and will sign an “Assignment
Agreement and Confidentiality Obligation™ form as a consideration of employment. Information that has been made
public by the Company, including the types of information just listed, such as press releases, SEC filings,
advertisements, etc. is not considered confidential.

Company procedures for releasing information to the public must be followed. In personal and business
conversation, employees should limit comments about the Company to information that has been publicly disclosed.
Any other disclosure of confidential information should only be made to individuals or organizations with a need to
know the information. Employees should not attempt to obtain confidential information that does not relate to their
employment duties and responsibilities. Employees should never use confidential information for personal advantage.

Compliance with Governmental Laws, Rules, and Regulations
Strict compliance with all governmental laws, rules, and regulations affecting the conduct of the Company’s business
is required. Any questions as to the applicability of any law or the appropriate manner of compliance should be
directed to the Corporate General Counsel.

Antitrust Laws

Employees must comply with the state and federal antitrust laws of the United States and of each country in which
the Company operates. These laws promote fair and honest competition and prohibit any agreements or
understandings that unreasonably reduce competition and business rivalry, such as price-fixing, discriminatory
pricing, etc. Refer to the HR Conflict of Interest policy.

Accounting Requirements

It is the policy of the Company to produce internal and external financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and to comply with the rules and regulations of the SEC. Refer to
the HR Reporting Misconduct in Accounting, Financial Reporting, or Auditing Matters policy.

Securities Laws

It is the policy of the Company to comply with all applicable securities laws. Employees who have obtained material
non-public information, or “insider information,” relating to the Company or to another company with which the
Company has done or is doing business, are prohibited from buying or selling securities of the Company or such
other company, or engaging in any other action to take advantage of, use for personal gain or pass on to others, or use
for the gain of others, that information. Employees are required to safeguard and keep confidential information that
may come to them in the course of their involvement with the Company, with special attention to information that
may affect the securities markets. Refer to policy FP6350, Corporate Information and Insider Trading.

Reporting Concerns or Suspected Violations
Employees must follow the ethical standards set forth in this policy. They also have the responsibility to ask
questions, seek guidance, and report concerns about compliance or suspected violations of this policy or any of the
policies referred to in this policy. Employees who act in good faith and provide specific evidence to substantiate their
report of a concern or a suspected violation are helping the Company and doing the right thing. They are protected
from interference in or retaliation for making such reports and cooperating in subsequent investigations or
proceedings.

Employees are encouraged to first report a concern or suspected violation to their direct supervisor or manager and/or
the Division General Manager. Supervisors, managers, and Division General Managers who receive a report are
required to report the matter to the Corporate Vice President, Administration or General Counsel.

If for any reason an employee feels reluctant to report the concern or suspected violation to his or her direct
supervisor or manager or the Division General Manager, the employee can report the matter directly to the Corporate
Vice President, Administration or General Counsel.

Employees are encouraged to report concerns or suspected violations in writing, providing as much evidence as
possible, and the name of the employee making the report. This makes investigating the report much more effective.
However, it is perfectly acceptable for an employee to make a report over the phone. It is perfectly acceptable for an
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employee to make a report anonymously. Even if an employee provides his/her name, confidentiality will be
maintained except to the extent that the person’s name must be disclosed to people involved in the investigation. It is
contrary to this policy and illegal for management to retaliate against anyone who makes a legitimate report.

Responsibilities of Employees Receiving a Report
Any supervisor, manager, or Division General Manager who receives an appropriate allegation is required to report it
to the Corporate Vice President, Administration or General Counsel. Failure by a supervisor, manager, or General
Manager to pass on a reported concern or suspected violation received within the scope of this policy may result in
adverse personnel action against the responsible employee, up to and including dismissal.

Reasonable care should be taken in dealing with reported concerns or suspected violations to avoid:

o reports that are made falsely or with reckless disregard for their truth or reports of such a vague nature or so
unsubstantiated by any evidence that they are too difficult to investigate

» exposure of the person’s name if that person wishes to maintain confidentiality

* premature notice to persons suspected of violation or to others not involved in the investigation

¢ violations of a person’s rights under the law

Accordingly, a supervisor, manager, or General Manager receiving a report:

* should not contact the person suspected of violating the policy

* should not discuss the report with anyone other than the General Manager, Corporate Vice President,
Administration or General Counsel

¢ should direct all inquiries from any attorney retained by the suspected individual(s) to the Corporate General
Counsel

Investigations of Reports
The Corporate Vice President, Administration, or the General Counsel, or both, shall, as appropriate, conduct or
direct the investigations of all reports of suspected violations, unless the report constitutes an “Appropriate
Allegation” under policy the HR Reporting Misconduct in Accounting, Financial Reporting, or Auditing Matters
policy, in which case the Corporate Audit Manager will conduct or direct the investigation. If the investigation
confirms a violation of policy, the Company shall take whatever actions are appropriate to disclose and correct the
matter. The Company shall also take appropriate disciplinary action against the employees involved in the violation.

Certification

This Code of Ethics policy applies to all salaried Company employees, who shall be required to sign an Employee
Conflict of Interest, Confidentiality, and Code of Ethics Certification annually.
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EMPLOYEE CONFLICT OF INTEREST, CONFIDENTIALITY, AND CODE OF ETHICS CERTIFICATION

1. () I have read, understand, and will comply with the Conflict of Interest Policy. I understand the
Company is relying on this certification by me in employing me and in disclosing Company
confidential information and trade secrets to me. I agree that following my employment with the
Company, all confidential information and trade secrets to which [ was exposed during employment
with the Company shall be held in the strictest confidence and will not be used or disclosed to any
person except as required by applicable law. I also agree to execute and be bound by the “Assignment
Agreement and Confidentiality Obligation” form applicable to salaried employees of the Company.

2. () I have read, understand and will abide by the Company’s Code of Ethics.

3. () Neither [ nor any immediate family member/relative of mine is presently engaged in, nor will I or any
of my immediate family members engage in, any business activity which would be in conflict
with or would be a violation of the Conflict of Interest Policy or which would constitute a
prohibited conflict of interest.

4. () I understand that a violation by me of the Conflict of Interest Policy or of this Certification
may constitute employment misconduct and may result in serious legal consequences including
but not limited to the forfeitures of severance and other employment benefits.

5. () I am not aware of any violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy.

If you do not check all five of the above, indicate below your reason as well as any known violations of the Conflict of
Interest or Code of Ethics Policies or areas of actual or potential conflicts of interest:

I understand that I must immediately update the above at any time circumstances may arise which would change this
continuing certification, and I agree to do so.

NAME

(Please print)

SIGNATURE:

LOCATION:

DATE:
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EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GENLYTE GROUP INCORPORATED
DECEMBER 31, 2003

The Genlyte Group Incorporated has the following subsidiaries, 100% owned, except as noted :

Genlyte Thomas Group LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (68% owned)
Diaman-Mexo, S.A. De C.V., a Mexican corporation
Genlyte Thomas Group Nova Scotia ULC, a Nova Scotian unlimited liability company
GTG International Acquisitions LP, a Canadian limited partnership
Lightolier De Mexico, S.A. De C.V., a Mexican corporation
Lumec Holding Corp., a Canadian corporation
Lumec, Inc., a Canadian corporation
Lumec-Schreder, Inc., a Canadian corporation (50.5% owned)
Shakespeare Composite Structures LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Thomas De Mexico, S.A. De C.V., a Mexican corporation
Translite Limited, a U.K. corporation
Sonoma Lighting, a U.K. corporation
Translite Sonoma, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (93% owned)
Genlyte Canadian Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
GTG Intangible Holdings, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership (68% owned)
Canlyte Inc., a Canadian corporation
Ledalite Architectural Products, a Canadian limited partnership

Translite Sonoma, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (7% owned)

75




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-57854,
No. 333-30066, No. 333-93369, No. 33-30722 and No. 33-27190) of our report dated January 23, 2004, with respect to
the consolidated financial statements and schedule included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Genlyte Group
Incorporated for the year ended December 31, 2003.

/s/ Erst & Young LLP

Louisville, Kentucky
March 12, 2004
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EXHIBIT 23.2

INFORMATION REGARDING CONSENT OF ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Section 11 (a) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act™), provides that if part of a registration
statement at the time it becomes effective contains an untrue statement of a material fact, or omits a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, any person acquiring a security
pursuant to such registration staterent (unless it is proved that at the time of such acquisition such person knew of such
untruth or omission) may assert a claim against, among others, an accountant who has consented to be named as having
certified any part of the registration statement or as having prepared any report for use in connection with the registration
statement.

In August of 2002, Arthur Andersen LLP (“Andersen”) ceased operations and accordingly, Andersen is unable to
consent to the incorporation by reference of the Company’s previously filed Registration Statements on Form S-8
(Registration Nos. 333-57854, 333-30066, 333-93369, 33-30722, and 33-27190) and Andersen’s audit report with
respect to The Genlyte Group Incorporated consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2001 and for the year
then ended. Under these circumstances, Rule 437a under the Securities Act permits The Genlyte Group Incorporated to
file this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference into the Registration Statements, without a
written consent from Andersen. As a result, with respect to transactions in The Genlyte Group Incorporated securities
pursuant to the Registration Statements that occur subsequent to the date this Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, Andersen will not have any liability under Section 11(a) of the Securities Act
for any untrue statements of a material fact contained in the financial statements audited by Andersen or any omissions
of a material fact required to be stated therein. Accordingly, you would be unable to assert a claim against Andersen
under Section 11(a) of the Securities Act, based upon the incorporation by reference from this Form 10-K into the
registration statement, because Andersen has not consented to this information.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CEO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Larry K. Powers, Chief Executive Officer of the registrant, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Genlyte Group Incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12; 2004 /s/ Larry K. Powers

Larry K. Powers
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CFO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, William G. Ferko, Chief Financial Officer of the registrant, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Genlyte Group Incorporated;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a -15(e) and 15d -15(e)) for the registrant and have:

2)

b)

c)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2004 /s/ William G. Ferko

William G. Ferko
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CEO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Genlyte Group Incorporated (the “Company™) for the year ended
December 31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Larry K. Powers,
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Larry K. Powers

Larry K. Powers
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

March 12, 2004
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CFO CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Genlyte Group Incorporated (the “Company™) for the year ended
December 31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William G.
Ferko, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ William G. Ferko

William G. Ferko
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
March 12, 2004
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Stockholder Information
The Genlyte Group Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Corporate Offices
10350 Ormsby Park Place, Suite 601
Louisville, KY 40223

Investor Relations
Information and Form10-K - Please call or write
the Investor Relations Department at 502-420-9500

Stock Listing
Genlyte common stock is traded on the NASDAQ
National Market System under the symbol GLYT

Transfer Agent

Bank of New York

Shareholder Relations Department

PO.Box 11258

Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286

(800) 524-4458

e-mail: Shareowner-svcs@bankofny.com
Stock Transfer Web Site: www.stockbny.com

Independent Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP

400 Market Street

Suite 2100

Louisville, KY 40202

Annual Meeting

The Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

will be held at 10:00 a.m. eastern time on Thursday,
April 29,2004 at The Genlyte Group Incorporated
10350 Ormsby Park Place,

Community Room, Lower Level,

Louisville, KY 40223

Web Site
www.Genlyte.com

An Equal Opportunity Employer

82




Board of Directors

Larry K. Powers* John Baldwin Zia Eftekhar** David M. Engelman Robert D. Nixon,

Chairman Director Director, Director Ph.D.
President & Chief Vice President Director

Executive Officer

Executive Committee

i N

Doug Andrews Tim Berman Steven R.Carson William G. Ferko Cheryl J.Fraga Terry M. Fraser

Chloride Ledalite Controls Vice President, Gardco Thomas Residential
Chief Financial Lighting
Officer & Treasurer

gf '~

Daniel R. Fuller Bill Griffin Chris Hammelef Charles M. Havers René Marineau Joseph W. Murphy
Vice President, Shakespeare Hadco Supply Division Canlyte Wide-Lite

General Counsel & Composite

Assistant Secretary Structures

George V. Preston Ronald D. Schneider Willi Schieichkorn Jean Francois Jeff E. Truax Raymond L.

Day-Brite Vice President, Thomas Lighting Simard Capri/Omega Zaccagnini
Operations Canada Lumec Vice President,

Administration &
Corporate Secretary

The management of Genlyte would like to thank Frank Metzger who
resigned his position as a Director of the company last year after having
served as a Director for more than 18 years.

Mr. Metzger served on Genlyte's Board of Directors from its

inception in 1985. In addition, he has been the Chairman of the
Compensation Committee and served as a representative on the GTG
Management Board.

Frank’s outstanding contributions to the Board and the Stockholders of
Genlyte have been significant. We thank him for his distinguished service.

Frank Metzger

*Also President and CEO of Genlyte Thomas Group & member of Executive Committee
**Also President of Lightolier & member of Executive Committee
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